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Chairman’s Statement
FREES

On behalf of the Board (“Board”) of Directors (“Directors”,
each being a “Director”), | am pleased to announce
that Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd
(“Company” or “Tengy Environmental”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) recorded solid financial results for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (“Year").

The Group is a well-established integrated atmospheric
pollution control solution provider, with a primary focus
on particulate emission control by offering mega-sized
precipitators to customers in various industries. The Group
is with over 22 years of industry experience and continue to
innovate in industrial technologies.

The Group's operating income during the Year decreased by
approximately 16.5% to approximately RMB607.1 million,
while the profit before tax during the Year decreased by
approximately 98.9% compared to the corresponding period
of last year, to approximately RMBO0.5 million. Meanwhile,
the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”, each being a “Shareholder”) was
approximately RMB4.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 86.9% compared to the corresponding period
of last year.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Approximately 56% of the revenue for the Year of the Group
is from the sales of electrostatic precipitator (approximately
47%) and bag filter precipitator (approximately 9%),
amounting to approximately RMB271.1 million and
approximately RMB52 million respectively.

The Group believes that, with its leveraging years of
industry experience and continual innovation in industrial
technologies, the Group possesses a competitive advantage
over existing market competitors as well as new entrants in
new projects, and can also obtain more new projects from
customers in the national electricity industries and also from
other industries due to its enhanced reputation as a reliable
atmospheric pollution control solution provider.

From 2018 to 2019, China’s environmental protection efforts
have been further strengthened by strictly controlling the
emission of air pollutants and by rolling out a stringent
accountability system. Up to now, almost all provinces
and cities in China have promulgated relevant policies,
financial support or project management plans for ecological
environment protection, providing strong support for China’s
comprehensive promotion of the environmental protection
industry.

With increasingly stringent environmental protection
inspection, the environmental protection equipment which
does not meet the requirements must be upgraded and
modified immediately, which in turn will give significant rise
to a certain demand for precipitators.

Looking forward, more effort will be made by the Group to
enhance its research and development capabilities and to
actively seek appropriate acquisition projects, to expand its
capabilities of research and development, manufacturing and
sales, as well as to access new domestic and international
markets.

The Group believes that its established customer base in the
PRC and its exposure to overseas markets could help it lay
a solid foundation for future expansion in both domestic and
overseas markets of the Group, and enable it to become the
leading player in the atmospheric pollution control solution
industry.

Last, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank the
management team and employees for their tireless efforts
and | sincerely thank the Shareholders and investors for their
continuing trust in and support to the Group.

The Group will continue to seize market opportunities,
protect the blue sky and clear water and build a century-
lasting Tengy!
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Financial Highlights
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Year ended 31 December

HE+-A=t+-ALERE

2020 2019 Change
ZEIEHE —E-nfF =)
RMB’000 RMB'000
Results E$ 5 ARETFT ARETF T
Revenue Wz 607,078 726,647 (15.4)%
Profit before tax AR 503 45,114 (2.8)%
Income tax credit/(expense) FriSiiER/ %) 3,986 (10,825) (28.7)%
Profit and total comprehensive — FEREMNEREEBA
income for the year 4% 4,489 34,289 9.8%
Earnings per share attributable AR EBERIFTAEA
to ordinary equity holders of L ERET
the parent
~ For profit for the year —FRaEH 0.03 0.25 8.7%
As at 31 December
R+ZB=+—H
2020 2019 Change
ZEIEHE & =)
RMB’000 RMB'000
Results EF 5 ARETT ARET T
Total assets BEERE 1,500,571 1,598,680 6.3%
Net current assets MEEEFE 507,440 589,241 5.7%
Total assets less current liabilities B E4AER RS E B 760,004 755,515 4.8%
Total liabilities BERE 740,567 843,165 77%
Total equity TEmABEE 760,004 755,515 4.8%
As at 31 December
®W+ZB=+—H
2020 2019
—E_EF —EB-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
Financial Statistics Erg g S8 ARETFT AR®BTFIT
Current ratio e 7 B L ) 1.7 1.7
Gearing ratio 2 EARE B R W) 2.4% 11.5%
Inventory turnover days (days) et ¥ FERBERY (R) W) 166.7 1973
Trade receivables turnover days B EWRFIE[EXH
(days) Mete eSS 423.7 300.1
Trade payables turnover days B EMNRIBEREXH
(days) Mote (k) as) 178.2 194.6
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Financial Highlight
HEEGEIR

Notes:

Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities

Gearing ratio = (total bank loan — cash and cash equivalents)/total
equity x 100%

Inventory turnover days = 365 days/(costs of sales/average balance of
inventory (net off impairment))

Trade receivables turnover days = 365 days/(revenue/average balance
of trade receivables balance (net off impairment))

Trade payables turnover days = 365 days/(cost of sales/average trade
payables balance)

V=2

mELLE=BEE B AE

BEXBaELEE= RTERRE-ReRRLEEY
/T HEEX100%

FEBBERYU=0365K HEML FETHEER (0
FRiE(E))

BRRUTIEREX#=365K, (&, 85 BN
B4R GOFRRE))

BRRATEREXR#U=365K, HEMEEZE
RRIBTI9ER)




Management Discussion and Analysis
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OVERVIEW

The Group is a well-established integrated atmospheric
pollution control solution provider, with a primary focus
on particulate emission control by offering mega-sized
precipitators to customers in various industries. The Group
has years of industry experience and record of continual
innovation in industrial technologies.

During the Year, the Group generated its revenue primarily
from (i) sales of environmental protection equipment; (ii)
sales of materials; and (iii) rendering of services.

The Group's sales of environmental protection equipment
represented tailormade and integrated atmospheric
pollution control solutions offered by the Group to its
customers, comprising engineering design, equipment
procurement and manufacturing, supervision of installation
and commissioning, customer training, and repair and
maintenance services provided to its customers on a project
basis. During the Year, the Group mainly offered three
types of precipitators: electrostatic precipitators, bag filter
precipitators and electrostatic-bag composite precipitators.

The Group's sales of materials represented sales of
materials, including raw materials, spare parts and
components and scrap materials to related parties or
independent third parties.

The Group's rendering of services represented its
technology consultancy services provided to its customers
on a stand-alone basis, which include repair and
replacement, and on-site engineering and maintenance
services for those projects which were not constructed by
the Group.

Precipitators are widely installed at coal-fired power
plants, metallurgical plants, paper mills and other industrial
production plants. As such, the Group has an extensive
range of customers including the project owners of power
plants and industrial production plants, or contractors
who undertake the construction work of power plants and
industrial production plants.

B
AEEBERNEEARSRITARRS R

R TEFENBAYBNSIIES £2E1T
ERBRREFAERESR FAEEBREAZEN
TEEBBETERM S EFEERAIN -

rEE AEENBETIEZEELZBFHERFER
1S EM L 5 Reliii) 2 AEARTS o

FEERFHERRIRBIEAEERATRREMNE
BEHRNGEERRSRABBASE BIEHRE
BEREFPREIRERT REREREE 158
ZRKRAR B RIEI RS A GERT AT
V AEBTRRME=TEMRESR  FERES
RARER R ERESIRESS

AEBPEMBIEAMB S NBUE=SHE
BUMERL > BFE RS ~ R tF RO BB 1 e BE e o

AERRERBIETIEERBIEEODR AR
MEMEART  SERTIFRAERRZENE
BiR M E R B URIRS T2 R MEERTS

HRRESEESEMEER S/ ERBRE
thIFXEEREEZZE FHit xEENER
R A2 a%é&‘%ﬁ&l%i%ﬁ%ﬁ’]lﬁﬁ
BEN AACEEMARIXLEERENRSET
TEREEE o
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

As one of the largest economies in the world, China has
introduced numerous environmental protection policies. The
introduction of China’'s “14th Five-Year” Plan for Ecological
and Environmental Protection” ({(BIZR+ U F | EREIRIER
#51#))) and the Summary of the “14th Five-Year” Plan
for Provincial National Economic and Social Development”
(BERSENMHEERETNELFREME)) has
continuously deepened the revolution in the environmental
protection industry, making the environmental protection
industry to be one of China's key strategic emerging
industries with boundless prospects for development.

China is committed to improving the green and low-carbon
production mode and lifestyle, and substantially reducing
the total amount of major pollutants discharged by 2025,
so as to ensure the overall improvement in the ecological
and environmental quality and the adaption of ecological
civilization construction to the building of a moderately
prosperous society in all respects.

As one of China's key strategic industries, governments
at all levels throughout the country also attach great
importance to the environmental protection industry in
provinces and cities by actively taking measures to promote
energy saving, emission reduction and environmental
governance, including the implementation of the urban air
quality checklist management system and the continuous
carrying out of the “Provincial Blue Sky Project Action Plan”
(BEXIRETHE)), aiming to significantly lower
the number of days of serious pollution; as well as the
deepening of industrial pollution treatment by implementing
cleaner production technology transformation in key
industries such as steel, building materials, coking, non-
ferrous metals, etc.

Up to now, almost all provinces and cities in China have
promulgated relevant policies, financial support or project
management plans for ecological environment protection,
providing strong support for China’s comprehensive
promotion of the environmental protection industry.

Meanwhile, China has been implementing a large number of
infrastructure projects and telecommmunications engineering
projects in recent years, where the related projects need
the support of the power generation industry, which has
increased the demand for the Group's environmental
protection equipment.

ESE1)

EREREREERZ — PEIRRBERBEN
B HEHE L (BR T+ R £EIRRRESTE)
M(EBERGEEN T EERE T IERLERE
) LEFREXEMFERL FREEEMN
REEEEBREREERXY — BABARE
FRAIR o

BB 12025 F B EER XM EFH &
BEHKT LR URIBTESRREE KRR
L MR ERIRIEE BMENEN T ER
XERZRKTEEERM/NEAEHERE-

ERBREBBEEXY — 2ESRBFHET
MIRREXTSEER  MHOBIGESEISEREE
MIRRGETIF-BEERRHTEREEBFEN
B @E(EBEXIRTHE)  BNBES
FRRAERD ; BRI ESRAGIE Hil
#EM EENAEeTBESERTEERBZR
FEERMAE

BEBR KERFFAANET HEHGER
RIBFREEFABRR BT RHNEEEELRFE
~HEEEERERREXRHAE IR

EE REAFEETAENERIREERFT
2 MABNIREREEBTENIE  )EMg
MTHEERIRFRRBEOFR
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In addition, in view of China being committed to developing
clean energy to improve green and low-carbon levels, the
Group acquired 49% equity interest of W HEEFZE
BEBPFRAT (Inner Mongolia Guodian Hejie Wind Energy
Co., Ltd.) from the controlling shareholder of the Group on 1
June 2020. The Group believes that the acquisition will lay a
foundation for the Group to enter the wind power market in
China, and will also broaden the Group’s source of income,
further improve the value of the Group, and maximize the
returns to the Shareholders.

The Group believes that leveraging on its track record and
advanced technologies together with its stable workplaces
and staff, its ability to secure new projects will be improved.

Moreover, the Group has successively begun to execute
orders in respect of mega-sized recipitators related works
for different state-owned and private enterprises in the
second half of 2020. This laid a solid foundation for the
Group to secure orders in 2021.

For the Year, the revenue and total comprehensive income
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB607.1 million
and approximately 4.5 million respectively. During the
Year, the Group's gross profit amounted to approximately
RMB111.0 million, representing a decrease of approximately
1.4% as compared with approximately RMB125.3 million
of the corresponding period of last year; while the Group's
gross margin increased by approximately 1.1% from last
year to approximately 18.3%. The increase in the gross
margin for the Year of the Group was mainly attributable to
the decrease in the price of raw materials of the products
produced by the Group during the Year.

For the Year, the value of the Group’s new contracts (which
represents the aggregate value of the contracts it entered
into during a specified period) was approximately RMB345
million. As at 31 December 2020, the Group's backlog
(including applicable value-added tax) (which represents
the total estimated contract value of work that remains to
be completed pursuant to outstanding contracts as of a
certain date and assuming performance in accordance with
the terms of the contract) was approximately RMB2,199.7
million.

Soh BN EERNERBEZERUEAZEHE
BRAKT > REBEBR2020F681HARERN
ERRBEWEASDBEEFZAEERATHN
49% PR - REBMEE LN BR ATEEBEEH
HRETSETERAUKRIEREAERIU AR
B E—TSREAERENEE THRSEMNKE
[B13R o

REBEEE  BEUERFEE SERRM A0
FRENIAESHAMIEAS  ZEEFEHE
BBBENRBFTRS

SN EZEEETHE AEESTENE
BEFEMMALEEBERBAIIRERMTE
I AT —FEETHEENER-

AEE AERNKEREEWRALBIED AL
AR6O7TTEB T RNAREISEE T AE
B> AEBEEMNBREFERFNNOAREI125.38
BB A% ENAREINOEE T MA
EREMNXREFEMN11%ELN18.3% o Ak
ERAEEENEFNKEN TEHANEAEEAE
BT EERNRMEHERS M-

KEE  AEEMERANEER BIAEEREE
HBRIET IS RAEE) A ANRK3458E T °
TECEE+"A=+—H > AEENEXRTHE
FZE (BIEERILER) BREBEERERE—EH
HNAEREREBENEFER IRENGHTS
FRERBESREFIEHNEERRR OB A
RM2 1990788 T o
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The Group's profit before tax for the Year decreased to
approximately RMBO0.5 million while profits attributable
to owners of the Company decreased to approximately
RMB4.5 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 98.9% and decrease of approximately 86.9%
respectively. The aforesaid decrease in profits attributable
to owners of the Company is mainly due to the increase in
the loss allowance for trade receivables during the Year to
approximately RMB42.1 million and due to the decrease
in the revenue during the Year to approximately RMB607.1
million.

At the time of raising the amount of product sales, the
Group spent great effort in enhancing cost management
to make its products and solutions more cost competitive.
The atmospheric pollution control solutions offered by the
Group mainly comprise the atmospheric pollution control
devices designed and manufactured on its own. The Group
possesses the qualifications and expertise in manufacture
and supply of the key atmospheric pollution control
system of the projects it undertakes based on customised
design proposals. The Group is dedicated to improving
its manufacturing process and management system by
managing the product quality and operation, reducing
energy consumption and assessing the environmental
impact in accordance with international standards. The
quantitative management, environmental management and
quality management systems of the Group were awarded
with a number of ISO certificates. These systems help
the company in estimating costs, smoothening project
operations and improving operating efficiency.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 47 registered
patents (including 3 invention patents and 44 utility
model patents) in the PRC. Based on its strong design
and engineering capabilities, the Group primarily provides
comprehensive atmospheric pollution control solutions to
its customers. The Group offers a wide range of models
of electrostatic precipitators which support electricity
generators with capacity spanning from 6MW to over
1,240MW. The Group is one of the few manufacturers in
the PRC which provides electrostatic precipitators for single
generator unit with capacity of 1,000MW or above.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group maintained a total
of 501 full-time employees (2019: 550). The remuneration
payable to the Group's employees includes basic wages,
bonuses and other staff benefit. The Group conducts
periodic performance reviews for the employees and
determine their remuneration based on factors including
qualifications, contributions, years of experience and
performance.

AEENRAEENRENEANE LD ELANRKO0.5
BET MARBEE ABERFERLDELSA
R4 588 DRmER/LA98. 9%&&"\
#986.9% o L A AT A AELE AR TS
ERRAEEESRRFIEREEFHIENE ’]
AREL 1 BETARSFERFZRDENAR
6071 B & o
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B FERRBRSEBEEREABR R K&
HRHH KR SRR EETIEZCAEET
R RBENARRSREEE - TEBEAR
BRIt D EBERERBEFAARBEENEE
ARESRTARFNEERER -SEBRNIRN
NELEREREERR RRESRREEEE
mBEEREE VRO MERERMETRIEFE
Tt - AEENGEEE - REREEREEEE

ARMELZAISOGRE ZFRMBYLRFGE
BaA EERERIEN BHMUREAGEREK-

R TECRF+ A=+ —R rERTETEE
BA7TEGEMERN (BEEERENRI4EER
MERR) - BERAEBBARS R IERES]
FEBTEZNEFRREEZEARSREHR
HE-FERRENFERERERES  IH
NP6 ERE, 240K RRIE B - AEBZEH
Bl/DBAAEZ 1,000k BB LB — S BRER
HEERERNREHE

A ZEEF+ A=+ —H AEEHEEFS0
Z2BEE (T2 —NF :650%) BN TAE
BERENFMNEEERATE - TARHEMET
wi e AEB TR EENKRR REENE
[E~ B FERRIFERZEEMPIRETEN o
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB607.1 million for the Year representing a decrease of
approximately 16.5% from approximately RMB726.6 million
of the corresponding period of last year. The decrease was
mainly due to the outbreak of the novel coronavirus disease
(COVID-19) epidemic (the “Epidemic”) which limited the
production activities of the Group during the Year.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's
revenue by segment and each item as a percentage of
revenue for the respective years indicated:

R #5301 B8
Wz

AEBNKREHEZERBENOARIE726.68
BT LA16 % ERFEMNNARKE07.1
EBT - ABERLIHTEARFEBRES
(COVID-19)& 15 (&AL IRERS| T AERB K
FENEEEH-

TREJIFATRSFEERERRDEE DI
BRMR R BB B WA B L

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HILEFE

2020 2019
—EZEF BN
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
AR%T T % | ARB¥TT %
Revenue W gs

Sales of environmental protection SHERRLE
equipment 580,530 95 696,284 96
Sales of materials HEMR 25,491 4 10,596 1
Rendering of services AR 1,057 1 19,767 3
Total st 607,078 100 726,647 100

Revenue generated from sales of environmental protection
equipment of the Group amounted to over 95% of its total
revenue. Depending on the specifications and requirements
of its customers, the Group may provide an integrated
set of atmospheric pollution control devices comprising
precipitators, desulfurisation system and/or denitrification
system, or only provide one type of the said atmospheric
pollution control devices on a stand-alone basis towards new
installation projects or upgrading or modification projects.
A majority of the Group's sales of environmental protection
equipment are related to the manufacturing, installation and
sales of electrostatic precipitators.

FERPEERFRRBELEHWR G N DE
BRLU L -BFEFIRBRER ZEEF %
MEZEBEENARVNERBERE—BERR
SRAKE BIERES RMAKKR R
HER RREBRM LA BRI SRIAK
BE-FAEBAOPHERRRHEBRNE ZEK
HERFERESRARM-
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The following table sets forth a further revenue breakdown TFNR&EIIMREZFER AR SRE AR RS E
of sales of environmental protection equipment by types of  E1BE| S I EIRFRRENE—T W=BBEAN -
atmospheric pollution control solutions for the respective

years indicated:

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—-RHLEFE

2020 2019
ZEIZE “ENhE
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
AREBTR % ARETT %
Environmental protection Rfr%E
equipment
Ash removal and transfers BRI ERIRE
- Electrostatic precipitator —HERES 271,097 47 458,886 66
- Electronstatic-bag composite ~ —EREAFRESS
precipitator 53,077 9 78,916 1
- Bag filter precipitator —RAPRES 52,038 9 101,844 15
- Others (e.g. Pneumatic ash —Eff (MR NBR R4
conveying system) 38,764 7 3,481 1
- 502 and NOx emission reduction —i8/> Z & (bfi &
(desulfurisation and [EHER
denitrification devices) (RETREREEE) 165,554 28 53,157 7
580,530 100 696,284 100

The Group's revenue for the Year was mainly generated from ZAEBRAEEN N E TERBIHEFEHRE
sales of electrostatic precipitator and SOz2and NOxemission 28 &R/ Z &L ERE LY EER (R &R
reduction (desulfurisation and denitrification devices). During £ 8) - RAREE » B A EREAMELL KRB IHEFF
the Year, as compared with the corresponding period of EBIERERSAIRESNWEDBBLHOAR
last year, the revenue derived from sales of electrostatic #187.8B B TENARIEI98HE T MINER
precipitator and bag filter precipitator were decreased ‘D" IEFHKREARCYEN RAKKRIFEES)
by approximately RMB187.8 million and approximately B ZFIEINA A RE112.48E T o

RMB49.8 million respectively while the revenue

derived from sales of SO2 and NOx emission reduction

(desulfurisation and denitrification devices) were increased

by approximately RMB112.4 million.
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With the experience in delivery of new installation
projects, the Group also provided large scale upgrading and
modification projects for power plants and other industries.

BEAMNZEEENXNER ZEBT A%
B REMITEREREREARAIEEB T
REIITTEFERTZERBURFAR, X

The following table sets forth a revenue breakdown of sales 3 IEB 8885 HI$H EIB R B E AU BAAH
of environmental protection equipment by types of new
installation project as well as upgrading/modification project
for the respective years indicated:
Year ended 31 December
BE+ZB=1+—HLEE
2020 2019
ZEIZE —hE
RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
AE®BTR % ARBFT %
Revenue W gs
Newly installed i 475,044 82 570,106 82
Upgrading/modification FR/ 238 105,486 18 126,178 18
580,530 100 696,284 100
Cost of sales #H & B2
The Group's costs incurred in sales of environmental HAEBHERRKZEMEENAASTEGSTEM

protection equipment principally comprise material costs,
staff costs, depreciation and overhead costs. The Group's
major raw materials used in the manufacturing process of
ash removal and transfer devices and desulfurisation and
denitrification devices are steel, electrical instruments, filter
bags and others.

The cost of sales of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB496.1 million for the Year representing a decrease of
approximately 175% from approximately RMB601.3 million
of the corresponding period of last year.

Gross profit and gross margin
The following table sets forth the breakdown of gross profit

and gross margin of the Group (stated as a percentage of
revenue) for the respective years indicated:

B A~ BT A TERKEEERME A5

B AR AR R S I B B LU IR B sz e B 5

%Eﬁ%LLEE’JIEEMﬂ%%@M CEBAES
MBI R H A o

AEBNHEREABEERHNOAREG01.3
BETHDAITSNERFENN AR L4961
BETe

ENREFE

TREINFATEFERERNENRENEK
UGB 2t 25) B4R ¢

Year ended 31 December

BE+-B=t+—HILEE

2020 2019
Gross profit (RMB'000) EFH ANR¥EFT) 110,954 125,314
Gross margin (%) EFE (%) 18.3% 17.2%
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The Group's gross profit of the Year amounted to
approximately RMB111.0 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 14.4 million or approximately 11.5% as
compared with approximately RMB125.3 million of the
corresponding period of last year. The gross margin of the
Group increased to approximately 18.3% for the Year. The
increase in gross margin of the Group was attributable to
the decrease in the price of raw materials of the products
produced by the Group during the Year.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains of the Group during the Year
increased to approximately RMB11.4 million, representing
an increase of approximately 0.9% from approximately
RMB11.3 million of the corresponding period of last year. The
other income and gains of the Group are mainly comprised
of bank interest income and government grants amounting
to approximately RMB1.0 million and approximately RMB9.7
million respectively.

Selling and distribution expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses of the Year
amounted to approximately RMB14.0 million, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB6.9 million as compared
with approximately RMB20.9 million of the corresponding
period of last year.

(i) The business hospitality expenses in 2020 decreased
by approximately RMB3.75 million, or approximately
41.2%, to approximately RMB5.36 million as
compared with approximately RMB9.11 million of the
corresponding of last year; and

(i) The staff salaries expenses in 2020 was approximately
RMB1.8 million. Compared with the corresponding
period of last year, the amount for the Year decreased
by approximately RMB1.6 million, or approximately
471%, from approximately RMB3.4 million.

REBNENREERPNOARKI12535E
TRV AREI4AEETHANE%ERFE
HHOARBINMOOEE T - AERERFENEN X
BINEMN18.3% c REBEMNEIEMEZHNA
FEAERMEEERNEMEMER TEE

HtWARFRF

AEERAFENEMBA ST EEEFRA
HAARBEIN.3EETHELEIEMNA0.9%EL A
REEN4AEE T AEBEMBRAKRFSEEZS
FIRTHEWA KRB DBHOARELOE
BTk ARBITEE T

HERDHRAZ

FEBNHEERDERAXBEEZERBNOAR
%20 98B TRV HNARKEIOBETELEE
MY ARE14.0B88 T

(i) TEENENBFEERLIERBNY
AEM9HE%mmmﬁA§msz%
TTHAIA 2% EHNRIES 6B ETT; &

(i) ZECZEMNBEIHMIOAARIEBLS

BET - AFENTHEBREFEHNIA

RESAEETHIONARKI6EE TN
#9471% ©
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Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for the Year
amounted to approximately RMB102.7 million, representing
an increase of approximately 61.7% as compared with
approximately RMB63.5 million of the corresponding period
of last year, mainly due to:

(i) the impairment losses for trade receivables in 2020
increased to approximately RMB42.1 million; and

(i) the research and development expenses in 2020
increased by approximately RMB21.1 million from
2019 to approximately RMB23.3 million, mainly due to
the increase in the number of technicians employed
by the Group and the related efforts in research and
development during the Year.

Finance cost

The finance cost of the Year amounted to approximately
RMB7.1 million, representing an increase of 2.9% as
compared with approximately RMB6.9 million of the
corresponding period of last year.

Income tax credit/(expense)

The Group's income tax credit of the Year amounted to
approximately RMB4.0 million, representing an increase
of 137% as compared with the income tax expenses
approximately RMB10.8 million of the corresponding period
of last year.

Trade and bills receivables

As at 31 December 2020, the trade and bills receivables
of the Group were approximately RMB791.6 million,
decreased by approximately RMB8.9 million as compared
to approximately RMB800.5 million of the corresponding
period of last year. The increase in trade receivables by
approximately RMB52.3 million as compared with the
corresponding period of the last year is mainly due to the
increase in the number of on-progress projects while the
decrease in bill receivables by approximately RMB61.3
million as compared with the corresponding period of last
year is mainly due to the fact that more bill receivables are
used for the settlement of trade payables during the Year.

THR

AEENTHESZHEZERBENHOAREG3.5
BETEMA61.7T%EREEMNHARKE102.7
B8t TEHR

() TE_EZEMESREWEIERESEL N
ENARE2IBET &

(il —E_EENMEERR_T—AFIEM
HWARE2IIEETENARIE233HE
T TERRAFEEAERREBNEMA
S8 AR EE D EIE 0T ER

R E A7

MERABEERPHUO AR IOTE TIEM
29%EREFENHNAREIIEE T

FRiGMESR ~ (%)

AEEBNFRERBECHEEERPNMERMES
HART10.8EETIEMIB7TREREFEENLIA
R4 088 T

B 7 BWRIERERREE

A TETEF+_RA=+—H xEENES
FERRERERRBEOSARKEINEE T
REFRBANYARIES00.58F TRIHIAR
%8.9E Bt BHMIREREER AL ML
AR¥B23BB T TERHANREEZEEHER
e ERSEEREREERBROOARES3
BET (EEARFTFEBSRREBERBING
HE SRR FrE e
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Inventories

As at 31 December 2020, the Group experienced a
decrease of inventories by approximately RMB98.5 million
to approximately RMB226.6 million when compared to
approximately RMB325.1 million of the corresponding
period of last year. The inventories mainly consisted
of steels, filter bags, electrical instruments and other
components.

Liquidity and capital resources
Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2020, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group increased by approximately RMB65.2 million
to approximately RMB104.5 million when compared to
approximately RMB39.3 million of the corresponding period
of last year, which was mainly due to:

() the net cash outflow of approximately RMB18.6
million generated from financing activities, which
mainly consists of the cash outflow of approximately
RMB18.6 million on proceeds from bank borrowings
and repayments of bank borrowings;

(i) the net cash outflow of approximately RMB44.9
million used in investing activities of the Group in the
Year, which mainly consists of the cash outflow of
approximately RMB73.5 million on acquisition of the
49% of the equity interest of RE HEBAZEBE
FR/A7) (Inner Mongolia Guodian Hejie Wind Energy
Co., Ltd.); and

(i) the net cash inflow of approximately RMB129.5 million
generated from the operation of the Group in the Year.

Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2020, the Group incurred outstanding
bank loans of approximately RMB106.5 million.

Net current assets

As at 31 December 2020, the net current assets of the
Group (the difference between total current assets and
current liabilities) decreased by approximately 13.9% from
approximately RMB589.2 million of the corresponding
period of last year to approximately 507.4 million for the Year.

=8

ATECEE+"A=+—H AEENEFEYN
ABARIE226 688 T BREFFBPHNARKE
325. @Eﬁiﬂz D ANRIEISEEE T - FEE
EEEMM  BBER B EEREMS o

RBEEREE KR
HeRBLEEY

A CEREF BT+ —H AEENRER
HEeSEYNAARBIVAEET BEER
HWHARIE393EE T MAARKEES.25E
T EEAR

() MEIFRELERSAHLBFENOARE
18.6E &L TBBERITEMPAIF/INRIEA
REZRTERNEZRAEOAR18.6
E%Tﬁ )

(i) TEERAFENRETHFFARERY
FEOARB44BE T TEEERE
NEEEEMNZRERRA 749%52%7@
RS ALIARKEIZEEET

(i) AEBRAEENKEMELERESRAF
AN ARKEI1295B8&8 T

2=

ATEoEEL A= +—B AEERERE
BRTERNARKI065EE T

REEEFE

R ZECRF+ A=+ —B FAEENASE
EFERBEERERRBEEMNER BAE
FRPHNARESS9.2B8E TR A13.9%E
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Capital expenditure

No capital expenditures of the Group were used for the
purchase of property, plant and equipment in the Year.

Exchange risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales by operating units in currencies
other than the functional currencies adopted by the units.
Approximately 2.7% (2019: 3.4%) of its sales for the Year
were denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the operating units making the sale. At
present, the Group does not intend to seek to hedge its
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations. However, the
Group's management will constantly monitor the economic
situation and the foreign exchange risk profile of the Group,
and will consider appropriate hedging measures in the future
should the need arise.

Major acquisitions and disposals

On 1 June 2020, the Company entered into the agreement
with AT RZHMERRMDBERLQE (Zhejiang Tengy New
Energy Company Limited) (“Tengy New Energy”), pursuant
to which the Company conditionally agreed to acquire and
Tengy New Energy conditionally agreed to sell 49% of the
equity interest of AKEHEEMREAEFRASE (Inner
Mongolia Guodian Hejie Wind Energy Co., Ltd.) for the
consideration of RMB73,500,000. For details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 1 June 2020 and
the circular of the Company dated 26 June 2020. Save as
above, the Group did not have any other material acquisition
and disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
during the Year.

Significant investments

The Group did not have any significant investments during
the Year.

B
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Contingent liabilities

The Group is neither currently involved in any material legal
proceedings nor aware of any pending or potential material
legal proceedings involving itself. If the Group were involved
in such material legal proceedings, the Group would record
any loss or contingent events when, based on information
then available, it is likely that a loss has been incurred and
the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities or guarantees.

PROSPECTS

In order to cooperate with the relevant environmental
protection policies in PRC, the Group will devote time
and resource to enhance its research and development
capabilities, develop new technologies and expand our
product portfolio (such as ash conveyers) to fight the
atmospheric pollution control battle for our country, protect
our country’'s blue sky and water, and give back to the
society.

Besides, the Group will continue to actively seek appropriate
acquisition projects to expand its capabilities of research and
development, manufacturing and sales, as well as to access
new domestic and international markets.

The Group hopes to capture the growing opportunities in
the atmospheric pollution control solution industry in the
PRC through internal research and development and external
expansion to consolidate the Group's existing business,
and enhance the Group's national and international brand
recognition in order to expand its domestic and international
market share.

The Group believes that its established customer base in the
PRC and its exposure to overseas markets could help it lay
a solid foundation for future expansion in both domestic and
overseas markets of the Group, and enable it to become the
leading player in the atmospheric pollution control solution
industry.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of nine members, comprising
three executive Directors, three non-executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors. The powers
and duties of the Board include convening Shareholders’
meetings and reporting the Board’'s work at Shareholders’
meetings, implementing resolutions passed at Shareholders’
meetings, determining the Group's business plans and
investment plans, formulating the Group’s annual budget
and final accounts, formulating proposals for profit
distributions and for the increase or reduction of share
capital as well as exercising other powers, functions and
duties as conferred by the articles of association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”). Each of the Directors
has entered into a service contract/letter of appointment
with the Group.

Executive Directors

Mr. BIAN Yu (G23F) (“Mr. Bian”), aged 37 is the chairman
of the Board and an executive Director appointed on 28
December 2009. Mr. Bian was also appointed as general
manager of the Company on 15 May 2017 Mr. Bian has
approximately 16 years of experience in the business of
provision of atmospheric pollution control solutions. Mr. Bian
has also been the executive director of various subsidiaries
of the Company including Zhuji City Tianjie Installation
Engineering Co., Ltd.* GEEBEHTRZEZZETREERAE)
(“Tianjie Installation Engineering”) and Zhuji City Tianjie
Electronic and Technology Co., Ltd.* (EEHRRXZ2EFRH
AFE/AF))and Turpan Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.*
(HEFBRZIREBREARAT) since March 2008, June
2009 and July 2013 respectively.

Mr. Bian has worked as a director of Tengy Group Limited*

(R2&E£EARAR) ("TGL") since August 2003. He
is responsible for the overall strategies, planning and
business development of TGL. Particularly, he focuses
on the management of the business of the provision of
atmospheric pollution control solutions carried on by TGL
prior to the establishment of the Company in December
2009. From September 2005 to December 2007, he served
in various positions such as general commander and general
manager in different departments in the subsidiaries of
TGL such as Zhejiang Yaoyu Special Steel Co., Ltd.* (7L
EREEMEMRIARAE) (“Yaoyu Special Steel”), Zhejiang
Tianjie New Materials Co., Ltd.* IR ZHMIE B IR
‘AF)) ("Tianjie New Materials”) and Zhejiang Tianjie
Magnetic Materials Co., Ltd*. G I RK:ZHEIMEM RN A
FR/A&]) which were principally engaged in manufacturing,
processing and marketing of steel blade and he was
mainly responsible for the overall operation and production
management.
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He worked as a director in various companies such as
Zhejiang Tianjie General Machinery Co., Ltd.* (i I KZ5®
%W E R A5 ("Tianjie General Machinery”) (being
principally engaged in manufacturing and marketing of
machinery and parts) since April 2008, Shanghai Pingchuan
Metal Material Co., Ltd* (L&F/IE&BHMEAERAR)
(being principally engaged in sale of metal materials,
construction materials and chemical raw materials) from July
2010 to October 2012, Shanghai Guotuo Mining Investments
Limited* (E/8EHREXREFRAT) (being principally
engaged in management and exploration of mines and
development of mining technology) from August 2010 to
May 2015, Zhuji Tengy Small Loan Co. Ltd* GEEHXZ
NEEE B R/AT) (being principally engaged in providing
small loan and financial consultancy service in Zhuji City)
from June 2011 to December 2016, and as chairman of the
board of Zhuji City Tianyu Industry Investment Ltd* (&%
MEAXFEEREERLE) (being principally engaged in
real estate development and property investment) from
November 2011 to February 2016 and as executive director
of Zhuji City Runtian Property Management Ltd.* (F5E&
mERYEERERALT) (being principally engaged in
property management) since September 2011. He was
mainly responsible for advising on operational and business
strategy of the foregoing entities.

Mr. Bian is currently the Vice President of Zhejiang
Association of Equipment Industries for Environmental
Protection (/I BIRIREFEITEHEIEES). He has also
been the deputy officer member* (BIFEEZEE)of the
Electrostatic Precipitator Committee of The Environmental
Protection Industry* (FEIRIBREEXWTEREZE D
BNEEMREZEE)since February 2014,

Mr. Bian graduated with a bachelor's degree in mechanical
engineering and automation from Zhejiang University Giff
JIREZ)in June 2005. He obtained his master of science
degree in corporate and international finance from University
of Durham in the United Kingdom in January 2008. He is the
son of Mr. Bian Jianguang and the brother of Ms. Bian Shu.

Mr. Bian is a member of the family comprising Mr. Bian
Jianguang, Ms. Bian Shu and himself (“Bian Family”)
and the Bian Family is a controlling shareholder (within
the meaning of the Rules (“Listing Rules”) Governing
the Listing of Securities on the The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) of the Company
(“Controlling Shareholders”, each being a “Controlling
Shareholder”).
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Mr. BIAN Weican (322%2), aged 60, is an executive
Director and the deputy general manager of the Company
appointed on 28 December 2009 and 5 February 2018
respectively. Mr. Bian Weican has approximately 28 years
of experience in the business of provision of atmospheric
pollution control solutions.

Mr. Bian Weican successively worked in Zhuji County
Mechanical Model Plant* (&2 Bt IR 8L ) and Zhejiang
Zhuji City Industrial Environmental Protection Equipment
Factory* (/I 2 HEBEM LT XRFRIRBELAM) from 1982
to 1995 in which he was responsible for manufacturing
machinery mould and procuring of raw materials. He worked
as the director of the material procuring department of TGL
from June 1995 to August 2013 in which he was responsible
for the materials procurement planning and management of
suppliers.

Mr. Bian Weican graduated from Zhuji County Tongshan
Community High School GEERAEILL AR A A CER)IN
Zhejiang Province in July 1976.

Ms. BIAN Shu (&%), aged 39, is an executive Director
and the deputy manager of the administration department
of the Company. She was appointed as a Director on 1
June 2016, and has served as the deputy manager of the
administration department of the Company since September
2014. Previously, Ms. Bian Shu worked as the manager of
the human resources department of TGL from February
2006 to January 2010 and was responsible for the human
resources management and administration work of TGL.
She worked as the chief financial officer of TGL between
February 2010 to December 2011 and was responsible for
accounting matters and financial planning and management.
Ms. Bian Shu served as the vice president of TGL from
December 2011 to August 2014, and was responsible for
day-to-day operations and management and to deputise the
president when necessary. Furthermore, she served as the
chairman of the supervisory committee of the Company
("Supervisory Committee”, each member thereof being
“Supervisor”) from 28 December 2009 to 31 May 2016
and as the employee representative Supervisor from 10
May 2014 to 31 May 2016, and was primarily responsible
for supervising and overseeing the performance of the
Directors and other senior management members of the
Company.
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Ms. Bian Shu holds a bachelor’'s degree of philosophy
from Zhejiang University in June 2003. She holds a master
degree of international business from the University of
Sydney in October 2006. She is the sister of Mr. Bian Yu and
the daughter of Mr. Bian Jianguang.

Ms. Bian Shu is a member of the Bian Family and the Bian
Family is a Controlling Shareholder.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. BIAN Jianguang (3 t), aged 66, is the vice
chairman of the Board and a non-executive Director
appointed on 28 December 2009. Mr. Bian Jianguang has
approximately 30 years of experience in the business of the
provision of atmospheric pollution control solutions.

Mr. Bian Jianguang successively worked as the factory
director of Zhuji County Mechanical Model Plant* (5% & F 1
MAEAER) and Zhejiang Zhuji City Industrial Environmental
Protection Equipment Factory* G I & BT LERR
R HERR) from 1982 to 1995 in which he was responsible
for the overall management and business operation. From
June 1995 to August 2003, he served as the chairman of
the board of directors and the executive director of TGL and
he later resigned as chairman of the board of directors and
have been serving as vice chairman of the board of directors
of TGL since August 2003 responsible for the overall
management and business operation of TGL. He worked as
the director of Tianjie General Machinery (being principally
engaged in the manufacturing and marketing of machinery
and parts) from November 1999 to April 2008 in which he
was responsible for its overall management and business
operation.

Mr. Bian Jianguang has been working as the executive
director of Tianjie New Materials (principally engaged in
manufacturing, processing and marketing of steel blade)
since June 2009 and the chairman of the board of directors
of Tianjie General Machinery (being principally engaged
in manufacturing and marketing of machinery and parts)
from November 1999 to April 2008. Mr. Bian Jianguang
has been also working as an executive director for various
companies such as Yaoyu Special Steel (principally engaged
in manufacturing, processing and marketing of steel blade)
since April 2016 and Zhuiji City Tianjie Heavy Development
Limited* FEEMAXREIRMBRAE) (being principally
engaged in research, design and development of heavy
machines) since April 2016, and he is mainly responsible for
day-to-day operation and management, and overall business
management in these companies.
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Mr. Bian Jianguang is the father of Mr. Bian and Ms. Bian
Shu. Mr. Bian Jianguang is a member of the Bian Family and
the Bian Family is a Controlling Shareholder.

Mr. ZHU Xian Bo (& if) (“Mr. Zhu"), aged 54, is a non-
executive Director appointed on 31 May 2019. He was
appointed as the director of the corporate governance
department and project management department at the
second silk factory in Zhuji City from February 1987 to July
1994; the deputy general manager of Zhuji Jiasi Knitters
Co., Ltd.* GEEBERBHSHEREME AR from July 1994
to January 2002; the deputy general manager of Zhejiang
Hanyu Security Technology Co., Ltd.* G L EF L2 MTAE
FR/A &) from February 2002 to September 2003; the deputy
factory director of Zhuji Chengguan Aluminum Products
Factory* (F& B2 IfRIER % MK from September 2003 to
January 2006; the general manager of Zhuji Huahai Anlun
Co., Ltd.* (FEEBEFSIMEPRLE) from February 2006
to March 2009; the deputy general manager of Zhejiang
Junmashen Aluminium Co., Ltd.* G IE E#iREAEA
@]) from April 2009 to March 2017. He has served as the vice
president of TGL since March 2017

Mr. Zhu attended the national higher education entrance
examination in July 1984, was admitted to Zhejiang Ningbo
Mechanic Industrial School* GHfi T2 % il T 22 )
in September the same year, and obtained a Diploma of
Business Administration from Zhejiang Ningbo Mechanic
Industrial School* (7T E & # i T 222 4%) in January 1987;
passed the self-study examination for higher education
in December 1991 and received a Diploma of Industrial
Management Engineering from Zhejiang University of
Technology; pursued postgraduate study of management
science and engineering in Zhejiang University from June
2000 to March 2002 and obtained completion certificate;
received an undergraduate diploma in law through online
education from Southwest University of Science and
Technology in June 2005. Mr. Zhu was recognised as a
senior economist by Zhuji Municipal Personnel Bureau (552
M AZEB), and was granted the qualification of practising as
a senior engineer by Accreditation Commission of Technical
Expertise Level of Shanghai Aluminum Trade Association (_E
EIRETEREEERMKEHBTERNEEZEE)in April
2011.
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Mr. CHEN Jiancheng (FR#3:H), aged 57 is a non-executive
Director appointed on 5 December 2017. Mr. Chen
Jiancheng worked as an assistant to general manager of
TGL from June 1995 to January 2000. He served as the vice
general manager of Zhejiang Liyu Stainless Steel Co. Ltd.*
G I FAAAE/AT) from June 2003 to December
2008, and became the chief technology officer (3 7iT42
g3) of TGL since January 2004, primarily responsible for
technological research and development as well as product
quality control.

Mr. Chen Jiancheng graduated from Zhuji Paitou Middle
School* (FEE M EEEHZ)in July 1979,

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Jiannan (BBZ#) (“Mr. Li"), aged 43, is an
independent non-executive Director appointed on 18
September 2018. He has over 17 years of experience in
accounting and finance industry in the PRC.

Mr. LI obtained a Bachelor's degree in accounting at
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics, the
PRC in 2001. He is a certified public accountant and a
certified tax agent in the PRC. He is currently the director
of consultation department of Zhuji City Guangxin Certified
Public Accountants Company Limited* (FEBE ™ E (S & 5TEM
EBFBRAR).

Mr. FUNG Kui Kei Jonas (E$E&)(“Mr. Fung”), aged
40, is an independent non-executive Director appointed
on 30 March 2018. Mr. Fung has more than 18 years of
work experience in the accounting field. He is extremely
experienced in advising on corporate finance matters
including pre-IPO, acquisitions and mergers, and corporate
governance and general compliance issues for listed
companies and private companies.
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Mr. Fung graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in accounting
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University (FHEIET K
2)in October 2003. Mr. Fung is one of the founders of
JMD & PME CPA Limited and OCTOSEC CPA LIMITED,
providers of professional corporate advisory to enterprises
in Hong Kong, and has been a partner of the same since
August 2014 and July 2016 respectively. From May 2011 to
March 2014, he worked as the assistant finance manager of
AZONA (HK) LIMITED principally engaged in fashion retail.
From December 2008 to May 2011, he was the auditor of
Shu Lun Pan Hong Kong CPA LIMITED and subsequently
the assistant manager of BDO Limited (due to a merger
between Shu Lun Pan Hong Kong CPA LIMITED), which is
the Hong Kong member firm of BDO International Limited.
From January 2006 to October 2008, he was the auditor
of BDO Limited. From October 2003 to December 2005,
he was an auditor in CWCC, a professional advisory firm
providing a full range of business services in Hong Kong and
major cities in mainland China.

Mr. Fung has been a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA") since 2007 He
has also been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") since 2011.

Mr. ZHANG Bing (3R)#), aged 39, is an independent
non-executive Director appointed on 15 September 2014.
Mr. Zhang Bing has approximately 11 years of experience in
the field of environmental planning.

Mr. Zhang Bing worked as a lecturer in the School of
Environment, Nanjing University (R AKZIBIEEZM) in
December 2008 in which he was responsible for teaching
and conducting research. He was promoted to an associate
professor and assumed the said role from December 2010
to December 2013 in which he was responsible for teaching,
conducting research and personnel training, and he later
became a professor and has been working since December
2013 in which he is responsible for teaching, conducting
research and supervising doctoral students. Mr. Zhang
Bing has been the director of the Center for Environmental
Management and Policy of Jiangsu Environmental
Protection.
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Mr. Zhang Bing was a committee member and the deputy
secretary of the second committee of the Society for
Environmental Economics of the Chinese Society for
Environmental Sciences (FEIRIER 2 &8 @ IRIB L HE S
&) from October 2008 to September 2012 and has been
the director of Chinese Society of Optimisation, Overall
Planning and Economical Mathematics, Energy Economics
and Management* (FEIBE A M E L HKBEH LTS A
TRAS T A B IR ZT ) E) since November 2012.

Mr. Zhang Bing obtained the Scientific and Technological
Progress Award (Second Class)* (RIZ &y — £ 5%)
from the Ministry of Education of the People’s Republic
of China (FEARHEMBEHAEEL) in January 2010, the
Eighth Young Scientist Award of the Chinese Society
for Environmental Sciences* (FN\EHTHIRIEREE
G5 ERFSE) in December 2012 from the Society of
Environmental Science of the PRC (FEIBIER 22 E)and
the Environmental Protection and Scientific Award (First
Class)* (R (R ER 2 MTED 12— F4T) from the Ministry
of Environmental Protection of the PRC (% A R A IS
1B {REEER) in December 2012.

Mr. Zhang Bing obtained a bachelor's degree in
environmental planning from Nanjing University (B8R K
) in June 2003 and a doctorate degree in environmental
planning and management from Nanjing University (B8R K
) in December 2008.

Directors’ Service Contracts

All Directors have entered into letters of appointment
or service contracts with the Company. As at 31
December 2020, no Director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or its subsidiary which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee consists of three members,
with two representatives of Shareholders and one
representative of employees. The employee representative
Supervisor is elected democratically by the employees
representative congress, while the Shareholder
representative Supervisors are elected by the Shareholders.
The term of office of each Supervisor is three years, which
is renewable upon re-election and re-appointment. The
powers and duties of the Supervisory Committee include
reviewing and verifying financial reports, business reports
and profit distribution proposals prepared by the Board;
and if in doubt, appointing certified public accountants and
practicing auditors to re-examine the Company’s financial
information; monitoring the financial activities of the
Company, supervising the performance of the Directors,
the president and other senior management members, and
monitoring whether they had acted in violation of the laws,
regulations and Articles of Association in the performance
of their duties; requesting the Directors, the president and
senior management members to rectify actions which are
detrimental to the Company's interests; and exercising
other rights given to them under the Articles of Association.
Each of the Supervisors has entered into a service contract/
appointment letter with the Group.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. CHEN Xinhua (BR#7ZE), aged 58, is an employee
representative Supervisor and the head of the procurement
department of the Company. He joined the Group since
2010.

From January 1997 to May 2000, Mr. Chen Xinhua
served as the manager of the department of supplies of
Zhejiang Shengjie Environmental Engineering Co. Ltd.*
(1B RIRFRIEBRAE)and was responsible for
the overall departmental management. From June 2000
to October 2001, he served as the manager of technology
transformation projects of Tianjie Strip Steel Factory*
(R 2/ . From November 2001 to May 2003 and
from January 2009 to December 2009, he served as
the procurement manager and vice general manager
of procurement centre, respectively, of TGL, and was
responsible for the procurement of raw materials. From
June 2003 to December 2008, he served as the vice general
manager of Zhejiang Liyu Stainless Steel Co. Ltd.* Gif;I3z
FARFHMAPEAE), and was responsible for assisting the
general manger in its overall operation.
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Mr. Chen was graduated from Shaoxing Vocational
Secondary College* (ABEIME THEZHEEZ2K) in July 1990
majoring in industrial enterprise management.

Mr. FU Jun ({819), aged 40, is a Shareholder representative
Supervisor. Prior to joining the Group on 18 October 2014,
Mr. Fu Jun taught at the school of computer and information
engineering of Zhejiang Gongshang University G I &
KE)in December 2009, being a lecturer and an assistant
professor successively, responsible for teaching and
conducting research.

Mr. Fu Jun obtained a bachelor's degree of bio-medical
engineering from Zhejiang University GHIAEE) in June
2004 and a doctorate degree in bio-medical engineering
from Zhejiang University (#7LAZ)in December 2009.
He also completed two years of minor studies in Japanese
language in Zhejiang University Gi7 L AZ8)in June 2003.

Mr. FANG Zhiguo (/38E), aged 43, is a Shareholder
representative Supervisor. Prior to joining the Group on 18
October 2014, he worked as a post-doctoral researcher in
environmental science and engineering at the Research
Centre for Eco-Environment Sciences of the Chinese
Academy of Sciences (FREIF} 22 pe 4 ARIRIBERAZT A0 from
July 2005 to August 2008, in which he was responsible for
conducting research. He joined the school of environmental
science and engineering of Zhejiang Gongshang University
CGIIImAZ)in August 2008 and became an assistant
professor since October 2009, in which he is responsible for
teaching and conducting research.

Mr. Fang Zhiguo obtained a master degree of science
majoring in ecology from Zhejiang University GH I AE) in
June 2002 and a doctorate degree in science majoring in
ecology from the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy
of Science (PEIRIZ2BHAZTAPT) (later renamed as the
University of Chinese Academy of Sciences (47 BRI} £ A
£)) in July 2005. He was a visiting scholar at the University
of Oklahoma in the United States from June 2006 to May
2008.

Except as disclosed herein, to the best of the knowledge,
information and belief of the Directors having made all
reasonable enquiries, there are no other matters relating
to the appointment of Supervisors that need to be brought
to the attention of the Shareholders, nor is there any
information relating to the Supervisors that is required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51 (2) of the Listing Rules
including matters relating to directorship held by Supervisors
in any public companies the securities of which are listed on
any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last
three years.

BREENR—NANEELBEENBETHIH
FEXBROEEXERTRLEXER-

BI9%E 40 mREAXRESF R _F—
FHR+NBMAXERR HEEER-TE
NE+ AR IIHASHEHEEET
REREH BERM BER a8H2NH
EHFT

BHEAER _ETNEAARNBNIRENE
MEETIESZLBURN_TTAE+ AN
BIARENEYBRBTRRIB LB WITFN T
SR -FARNAENIRBTRMFEHEHES

2o

FARBEXRE 435 mRERREZ -R-F
—OF+A+N\BMATERR KRR _2F
EFEtREZEENFENRETEMBERER
BRIBMARPORERENBETIEG IR
B BBETHR - RN N\FENBMAMN
IIRABRERBETRER T _TTH
F+HARETREE aEHERETHR-

FABSRENR BT _FRABEHIREE
BEBSELB TN _S2RF AR
MR LR (BB BRI 2R ASE) £1&
SRBHLBAU-FE_TTERAEZER
NELRBEERRNEEAETBEE-

PRAFIFTNEES  KIEH -5 EEHE
MEFFARN BEREE TEAMBREZE
EENFEERREFRREL TEABESENGE
MERARE LHRAIE13.51 (2R F LUKE
BREEA=FESEEFNEBIEIMEME
HFHELTNEAARATREEESTHEHN
EREE-

30 Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd #Hi{LRIEERBEEHE G A B A H]



Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

U~ B R R AR B R

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. QIU Jinxin (EB£ ), aged 58, is the deputy general
manager of the Company appointed on 15 May 2017 Mr. Qiu
Jinxin worked as a technician and deputy director of Zhuiji
City Fertiliser Factory* (EEmM{EAER) (being principally
engaged in the production and marketing of fertiliser) from
August 1983 to July 1993 in which he was responsible for
quality control and equipment management. Mr. Qiu Jinxin
has approximately 25 years of experience in the business of
provision of atmospheric pollution control solutions.

From July 1993 to June 2006, Mr. Qiu Jinxin worked
in TGL with the last position as chief engineer, and he
was responsible for the research and development of
environmental protection precipitator. He worked as
the general manager in Zhuji City Jieda Environmental
Protection Equipment Installation Company Ltd* (ZEE
BERRIJELZEBR AR (being principally engaged in
the design, production and installation of environmental
protection projects) from July 2006 to December 2008 in
which he was responsible for its overall management and
operation. From January 2009 to August 2012, he worked as
the vice general manager in Zhejiang Oriental Environmental
Protection Equipment Co., Ltd* GIVIER AIREREER
‘A&]) which was principally engaged in the technology
development and marketing of environmental protection
equipments, and he was responsible for the overall
management and operation.

Mr. Qiu Jinxin has been the vice president of the fifth
Council of the Environmental Protection Industry Association
of Zhejiang Province* (I RIEREXHEELEESE
&) since April 2013 and the deputy secretariat* (BIFE
) of third Council of Environmental Protection Industry
Association of Zhuji City* (EEBEHIRIZREEXENTE
= EIEE®)since December 2012. He has also been the
standing council member (B#IE2%) of the ninth Council
of Environmental Science Association of Zhejiang Province*
Gl1dEEresaes N EEED)since 17 April 2015.
In December 2005, Mr. Qiu was accredited as senior
engineer by Assessment Committee for Qualification of
Senior Position for Mechanical Engineering Technician of
Zhejiang Province* (HTI &M T2t A &= AR 75 B
BERRFEEZEE). In July 2016, Mr. Qiu Jinxin was included
in the first batch of the expert list of the expert database of
Environmental Protection Industry Association of Zhejiang

Province* G I B IRREXRD) .
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Ms. WU Fengdi (2E\##), aged 38, has been the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company (“CFO") and Board
Secretary. She joined the Group and was appointed as the
financial manager of the Company on 28 December 2009.
Ms. Wu Fengdi has approximately 16 years of experience
in accounting in the atmospheric pollution control solutions
industry. Ms. Wu Fengdi worked as the chief accountant
of TGL from April 2003 to December 2009 and she was
responsible for the financials and internal auditing of TGL.

Ms. Wu Fengdi completed three years of studies in
accounting at Shaoxing University (48 82X ¥ E2B) in January
2008.

Mr. QIU Yonghui (EB7k #&), aged 38, is the deputy general
manager of the Company appointed on 15 May 2017 He
joined the Group in July 2008 as the deputy manager of
the technology department. He was appointed as the
deputy general manager of the Company on 15 May 2017,
responsible for the operation of the technology department.

Mr. Qiu Yonghui is a first-class constructor (—#k 25 Ef) and
registered environmental protection engineer GEfIE{R T
#28M) in China. He focused on developing movable collecting
electrode plate, wet precipitators and high-efficiency
desulfurisation equipment. He had participated in designing
the movable collecting electrode plate for various projects,
including the 2X600MW unit of EMEBIRIFEEBAR
AF] and 2X660MW unit of EIEHEEERRAF. He
had also participated in designing the wet precipitators for
various projects, including the 3 X50MW unit of 78 %Z FA 3B A
B and 12 X50MW unit of &

Mr. Qiu Yonghui had acted as a technician and participated
in the research and development of a provincial new product
“circulating fluidised bed boiler auxiliary electrostatic
precipitator (BIRRICRIBEE E BFRE2S) for large
generator units (300MW-1000MW)". This product was
accredited with provincial product certification in 2010.
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Mr. ZHANG Rixing GRB77), aged 52, is the deputy general
manager of the Company appointed on 5 February 2018. He
joined the Group in May 2013 as the director of marketing.
He was appointed as the deputy general manager of the
Company on 5 February 2018, responsible for the operation
of the sales department.

Mr. Zhang Rixing graduated from FBEEERMER
majoring in accounting in 1986. Mr. Zhang Rixing served
as the sales supervisor of Zhejiang Zhuji City Industrial
Environmental Protection Equipment Factory* (i3I &8
B TR RBELER) from July 1993 to August 1994,
worked as the sales supervisor of HI R ZHHEIES
FR‘/A7 from September 1994 to May 1995 and the sales
supervisor of TGL from June 1995 to April 2003 and was
responsible for day-to-day sales management, after-sale
matters and liaison with buyers. He also served as the
general manager of Zhejiang Liyu Stainless Steel Co. Ltd.*
GIIXFAHMARAT) from May 2003 to February
2008.

Ms. XIN Lingling (¥181%), aged 45, is the deputy
general manager of the Company appointed on 5 February
2018. She joined the Group in March 2016 as the general
manager of the Hangzhou branch. She was appointed as
the deputy general manager of the Company on 5 February
2018, responsible for the operation of the research and
development department.

Ms. Xin Lingling was graduated from Shanghai University
of Electric Power (£/887/7K%) majoring in power plant
thermal power engineering (BBRZEASEEN /I TH2). She is a
senior engineer in China.

Ms. Xin Lingling served as the chief engineer of # LA
BB TZAMEAT from March 2004 to October 2006
and was responsible for project planning. She served as the
general manager and the executive director of #NHEE
IR B FR/A B from November 2006 to April 2010, served
as the general manager of JIFRIRIE TR BRLQE from
November 2009 to November 2015 and also served as the
technical consultant of XJ Lianhua INT'L Environmental Co.,
Ltd. from April 2015 to February 2016.
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Mr. CHEN Jianguo (FR% ), aged 60, is the deputy general
manager of the Company appointed since 3 May 2010. He
joined the Group on 28 December 2009 and was appointed
as the deputy general manager of the Company on 3 May
2010. Mr. Chen Jianguo has approximately 27 years of
experience in the business of provision of atmospheric
pollution control solutions.

Chen Jianguo was responsible for the research and
development of precipitators, installation of environmental
protection equipments and after-sale matters in enterprises
such as Zhuji City Industrial Environmental Protection
Equipment Factory* (FEEE T EIRRRELERK) from 1991
to 1998. From June 1995 to December 2009, he worked as
the head of the department of engineering and installation
of TGL and was responsible for the supervising installation
of environmental protection equipment, after-sale matters
and liaison with buyers.

Mr. Chen Jianguo graduated from Zhuji County Tongshan
Community High School* GEBE &R AR AT LER) I
Zhejiang Province in July 1977

nvironmental Technolo
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. WONG Shum Wai (formerly known as WONG Hon Kit),
and Ms. SHEN Qiong are the Company’s joint company
secretaries.

Mr. WONG Shum Wai (formerly known as WONG Hon Kit)
(EZR#4E), aged 31, holds a Bachelor's degree of Business
Administration (Hons) in Accountancy from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Wong Hong Kit is currently a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 10 years of extensive experience
in finance, auditing and consulting fields, gaining from an
international accounting firm and listed corporation. He
served as the financial controller of China Oil Gangran
Energy Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 08132), a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange from
2011. He worked as a senior auditor in Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu from 2011 to 2015.

Ms. SHEN Qiong (Gt8), aged 36, has been one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company since 1 November
2014 primarily responsible for the company secretarial
and legal matters of the Group. She joined the Group in
September 2014 as a legal officer. Ms. Shen Qiong has
approximately 11 years of legal experience in relation to
business operations.

Ms. Shen Qiong worked as a legal officer in Zhejiang Group
Net Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd* G I 3I8E T
EIR1B B FRAR) (being principally engaged in production
and sales of environmental protection equipment and
machineries) from August 2006 to December 2008 in which
she was responsible for legal and compliance matters. From
January 2009 to August 2014, she worked as a legal officer
and the assistant to the manager in TGL in which she was
responsible for legal and compliance matters.

Ms. Shen Qiong completed a long distance learning course
majoring in law from Southwest University of Political
Science & Law (FAMBUAARZ)in July 2008. She also
obtained a qualification certificate of assistant engineer in
municipal engineering issued by Zhuji City Personnel Bureau*

(FEE™HAZEMR)in April 2010.
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance and business ethics in the firm belief
that they are essential for enhancing investors’ confidence
and maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its
corporate governance practices from time to time in order to
meet the rising expectations of stakeholders, comply with
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements and fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

After reviewing the Company’'s corporate governance
practices and the relevant regulations of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the
Board is satisfied that the Company has complied with
the CG Code provisions for the Year save for the deviation
below:

° Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code,
the Company should have a policy on payment of
dividends which should be disclosed in its annual
report. However, the Board did not have such a policy
during the Year until the proposed dividend policy
was approved by Shareholders at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 30 June 2020.
Further details are set out in the section headed
“Dividend Policy” of this corporate governance report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing an effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the
best interests of the Company and the Shareholders. The
Board established three Board committees, being the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee (each a “Board Committee” and
collectively the “Board Committees”), to oversee different
areas of the Company's affairs.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors,
namely Mr. Bian, Mr. Bian Weican and Ms. Bian Shu; three
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Bian Jianguang, Mr.
Zhu Xian Bo and Mr. Chen Jiancheng; three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Li Jiannan, Mr. Fung
Kui Kei and Mr. Zhang Bing.
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Their biographical details and their family relationships
(where applicable) are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” above in this annual report. A list of the
Directors identifying their roles, functions and independence
is available on the Company's website.

Mr. Bian, an executive Director, the chairman of the Board
and the general manager of the Company, is the brother
of Ms. Bian Shu (an executive Director) and the son of Mr.
Bian Jianguang (a non-executive Director). Save as disclosed
herein, there are no other financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships among the members of the
Board.

The Company is committed to the view that the Board
should include a balanced composition of executive and
non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) so that there is a strong element of
independency on the Board, which facilitates the effective
exercise of independent judgements in the course of
decision-making. The Company is also committed to the
view that the independent non-executive Directors should
be of sufficient number, calibre and experience for their
views to carry weight, and that they should be free of any
business or other relationship which could have interfered or
potentially interfere, to any material extent, with the exercise
of independent judgment for the purpose of assumptions of
directorship in the Company.

Mr. Bian is the chairman of the Board, the executive
Director and the general manager of the Company, and is
responsible for overseeing the strategic planning, policy
formulations as well as corporate development of the Group
as well as undertaking the principal decision-making role
in the supervision and management of the Company's
overall operations. The Board meets regularly to consider,
discuss and review the major and appropriate issues that
pertain to the operations of the Company. As such, the
Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken
and the vesting of the roles of Board management and the
management of day-to-day business of the Company in Mr.
Bian will not impair the balance of power and authority. It
is believed that the said balance is ensured by the effective
management of the Board, of which the structure provides
the Group with strong and consistent leadership and
allows for a more effective and efficient business planning,
decision making as well as execution of long term business
strategies.
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The Board sets the Group's overall objectives and
strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and
financial performance and reviews its corporate governance
standards. It also decides on matters such as annual and
interim results, major transactions, Director appointments
or re-appointments, investment policies, dividend and
accounting policies. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility for implementing its business strategies
and managing the daily operations of the Group's
businesses to the executive Directors and the senior
management of which the members should report back
and obtain prior approval from the Board before making
decisions or entering into any commitments for and on
behalf of the Group. In compliance with the code provision
D3.1 of the CG Code, the functions and powers that have
been delegated are reviewed periodically to ensure that they
remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing
and monitoring the policies and practices on corporate
governance and legal and regulatory compliance of the
Group, and the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management.
The Board also reviews the disclosures herein to ensure
compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent access
to the Group's senior management to fulfill their duties.
Independent professional advice can be sought to assist the
relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the Group's
expense upon their request. Since November 2015, all
Directors have been provided with monthly updates on the
Company'’s performance and financial position to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to effectively discharge
their duties.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon
their first appointment of directorships or other positions
concurrently held in other companies or organisations.
These interests are updated on an annual basis and when
necessary.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING
AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
Shareholders and have exercised their duties with care, skill
and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group.
Every newly appointed Director receives an induction to
ensure that he has a proper understanding of the business
and operations of the Group and that he is fully aware of
his duties and responsibilities as a director under applicable
rules and requirements.

In compliance with paragraph A.6.5 of the CG Code, during
the Year, the Company organised training sessions to each of
the Directors in relation to continuing obligations of a Hong
Kong listed company and its directors. In addition, briefings
and updates on the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements are
provided to each of the Directors during Board meetings to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

According to the records maintained by the Company,
the continuous professional development programmes
received by each of the Directors during the year ended 31
December 2020 are summarised as follows:
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Types of training

Name of Directors EEN4A =R
Mr. Bian Yu BF&LE Aand B
AKB
Mr. Bian Weican BEIRSE Aand B
AKB
Ms. Bian Shu Bkt Aand B
AKB
Mr. Bian Jianguang BRMEE Aand B
AKB
Mr. Zhu Xian Bo MERFTE Aand B
AKB
Mr. Chen Jiancheng IR ¥ 58 o't & Aand B
AKB
Mr. Li Jiannan B E Aand B
AKB
Mr. Fung Kui Kei EIEE S Aand B
AKB
Mr. Zhang Bing RIRAE Aand B
AKB
A: attendance at Company-organised or external training sessions and/or  A: S NNAA B AEB SIS BRI B T s 2

seminars
B: perusal of materials relating to updates on regulatory requirements

B: MRAERMEEREAMOER
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is
to provide independent and objective opinions to the
Board, giving adequate control and balances for the Group
to protect the overall interests of the Shareholders and
the Group. They serve actively on the Board and Board
Committees to provide their independent and objective
views.

In compliance with Rules 3.10 (1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Company appointed three independent non-
executive Directors, representing equal to one-third of the
Board. One of the independent non-executive Directors has
the appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or
related financial management expertise as required by Rule
3.10 (2) of the Listing Rules.

Each independent non-executive Director has submitted an
annual confirmation in writing on his independence to the
Company for the Year pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations, the
Company considers that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent and free of any relationship
that could materially interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgement.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Group has three non-executive Directors, being Mr. Bian
Jianguang, Mr. Zhu Xian Bo and Mr. Chen Jiancheng. Each of Mr.
Bian Jianguang and Mr. Chen Jiancheng had been re-appointed
while Mr. Zhu Xian Bo had been newly appointed, at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2019.

Details of the biographies of Mr. Bian Jianguang, Mr. Zhu
Xian Bo and Mr. Chen Jiancheng are set out in the section
headed “Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” above in this annual report. Directors
emoluments for Non-executive Directors are set out in note
13 to the Financial Statements.

The term of appointment of the non-executive Directors is
three years.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee. Each Board Committee has its
defined and written terms of reference approved by the
Board covering its duties, powers and functions. Their terms
of reference are available on the Company's website.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management
or professional advice if considered necessary.

(i)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules as well as paragraph C.3 of the CG Code. The
Audit Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Fung Kui Kei, Mr. Li
Jiannan and Mr. Zhang Bing. Mr. Fung Kui Kei, who has
appropriate professional qualifications and experience
in accounting matters, was re-appointed as the
chairman of the Audit Committee on 31 May 2019.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are to assist the Board in providing an independent
view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management
systems and relationship with external auditor of the
Group, oversee the audit process and perform other
duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.
These include reviewing the Group's interim and
annual reports.

The work performed by the Audit Committee during
the Year includes:

(i) reviewing of the relationship with the external
auditors by reference to the work performed by
the auditors, its fees and terms of management,
and make recommendation to the Board on the
reappointment of external auditors;

(i) reviewing of the annual and interim results and
reports of the Company as to whether they are
in compliance with the accounting standards
and relevant requirements in relation to financial
reporting under the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws;
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(ii)
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(i) reviewing of matters relating to risk management
and internal control systems, and the plans
and objectives of the internal audit function
established by the Company; and

(iv) reviewing of the Group's accounting principles
and practices, financial reporting and statutory
compliance matters.

Pursuant to the meetings of the Audit Committee on
31 March 2021, the Audit Committee has reviewed
the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the Year (“Financial Statements”), including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, the report prepared by the external auditor
covering major findings in the course of the audit,
and the selection and appointment of the external
auditor. During the Year, three meetings of the Audit
Committee were held. The respective attendance
records of individual committee members are set out
below:

(il BREHAEABREERNBEZZRR
MEIE > URAA BRI AERE
BEENEBIRITIFER ; &

(v WeEEEZE5RAKIEG R
BERERBTEH

REBEZEEEN S —F=A=+—
HRETHNE®H BEEETEERTER
FEENFREVHBRE (MBHRER) (B
BAREEFMNESRARER) SN~
AP RN EBES (BEPREENEZB
BANEEREER) URIINSZEETR
BERZE-REFE BREEGHET
ZREZ-EHEEETHNERENEFEL
BETINT

Attendance/Number

of meetings

Name of member [pA=kie HE SR
Mr. Fung Kui Kei (Chairman) B E LA (£/E) 3/3
Mr. Zhang Bing RIRSEE 3/3
Mr. Li Jiannan B E 3/3

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established with
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of
the Listing Rules as well as paragraph B.1 of the CG
Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises three
Directors, namely Mr. Li Jiannan (independent non-
executive Director), Mr. Zhang Bing (independent non-
executive Director) and Mr. Chen Jiancheng (non-
executive Director). Mr. Li Jiannan is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

(i) FMESZ

FMZEEERE LHRAB3.26F R EE
EAST RSB R P SRV R SE B R 3T  #r
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BiuiERFHNEEETERE -
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(iii)

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are to review and make recommendations
to the Board on the overall remuneration structure
and policy for all Directors and senior management
as well as the specific remuneration packages for the
executive Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent process
for developing such remuneration policy. No Director
takes part in any discussion on his own remuneration.
The Company's objective for its remuneration policy
is to maintain fair and competitive packages based
on business requirements and industry practice. In
order to determine the level of remuneration and fees
paid to the members of the Board, market rates and
factors such as each Director’s workload, performance,
responsibility, job complexity and the Group's
performance are taken into account.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Remuneration
Committee on 31 March 2021, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed the remuneration policy and
structure relating to, as well as the respective service
contracts/letters of appointment of, the Directors and
senior management of the Company.

During the Year, one meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held. The respective attendance
records of individual committee members are set out
below:

FMEESENIEREERNEREER
SREEENERHFMNRERERUR
BITESKEREEBNEEHFMN S %
RMGIELEHMBERRULERMAS
BEMNER TN EEEREETIRM
B -MEEFSHABRELSHFINF
oA RBNHMBRERERBEXESS
ERTEEERT LT RATRE 1 BIF N
BR-KXABEBHH KT -BEENT
FE -RF - HE - TFEERFIERRER
FAR BEEMEFGHNEAIFI R
B KF o

REFWNEEEN S —F=A=+—
HRTHNEZ #FNEETCHRATAME
ERFREBREEENFHFMBERKIRE
URHEZBHNRBEH,EER-

REFEE FMEEETRIT -—REHE-E
HEEEMER BN HFELTEREIIUWT :

Attendance/Number

of meetings

Name of member MEHH HEEERE
Mr. Li Jiannan B LY 1/1
Mr. Zhang Bing RIRSTE 1
Mr. Chen Jiancheng FRE ST E 1/1

The remuneration of members of the senior
management of the Group for the Year are set out in
note 13 to the Financial Statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5
of the CG Code and comprises three Directors, namely
Mr. Zhang Bing (independent non-executive Director),
Mr. Fung Kui Kei (independent non-executive Director)
and Ms. Bian Shu (executive Director). Mr. Zhang Bing
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

(iii)

ERAEEFEESREERREFHINE
INCE R AR

RHZEEG

RAEZEERBEEERBTRIFAKMN
BB ELEENT H=%EFEN D
AARIREE BIIFRITES) BIEE
FE (BUIFATES REHKULT BITE
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The principal responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee are to review the composition of the
Board, including its structure, size and diversity,
at least annually to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Group. It is also
responsible for considering and recommending to
the Board any suitably qualified person to become
a member of the Board, monitoring the succession
planning of Directors and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive Directors. For details
of the nomination policy adopted by the Nomination
Committee, please refer to the section “Nomination
Policy” in this corporate governance report. The
Nomination Committee also gives consideration to the
board diversity policy adopted by the Board in March
2015 (“Board Diversity Policy”) when identifying
suitably qualified candidates to become members of
the Board, and the Board reviews the Board Diversity
Policy, so as to develop and review measurable
objectives for the implementation of the same and to
monitor the progress on achieving these objectives.
The Board is reasonably diverse in terms of age,
professional skills and experience during the Year.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Nomination Committee
on 31 March 2021, the Nomination Committee
reviewed the structure, size and composition of
the Board and assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors. During the
Year, one meeting of the Nomination Committee was
held. The respective attendance records of individual
committee members are set out below:

RYZEENTIEREEEIESERIE
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—H-RREETAEYVCREFESBERT
EEEFENENALIR  TEEZRES
ER_E-LFEZARMNESTETEZ L
HR ((EFEESTEHE) MEFEE
BNEFEEITEHR AEREFEES
T EBERET 1L P) 5t & BRI AN LU T » L

ERENEMERNEE -NEFE>
EFEREFR EERERERSEMNRE
EBaE-

REBEREEZEEN B —F=A=+—
HRTHNER RLEETERATESTE
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Attendance/Number

of meetings

Name of member [pA=kie HE SR
Mr. Zhang Bing (Chairman) RIRLE (F/F) /1
Ms. Bian Shu Bzt /1
Mr. Fung Kui Kei IR E A 1/1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set
out in paragraph D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company's corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management, and the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
extent of compliance of the Company with the “Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”
under Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) and
the CG Code as well as the relevant disclosures herein.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board is required
to hold at least four Board meetings each year, to be
convened and hosted by the chairman of the Board. A notice
of at least fourteen days shall be dispatched for a regular
Board meeting.

The quorum for a Board meeting is the presence of at least
half of the total number of the Directors. A Director may
attend the Board meeting in person, or appoint another
Director in writing as his proxy to attend the Board meeting.
The secretary to the Board is responsible for preparing and
keeping the minutes of Board meetings and ensuring that
such minutes are available for inspection by any Director.

During the Year, five Board meetings were held and the
respective attendance records of individual Board members
are set out below:

EXS0ERTHREEARTRIEDINRMEMN

EFEERAAREINEXEARRAER E
EREREZENEIIRGEEXRER -FAF
EETEREREERENENBEERER R
BT EHARRIM BT PREMC EHETAES
ETEFRZRETR]) (MREFR) REE
EATANBERRERRENBIERME -

EFXTRFERF

RBFABERMR EFESFRBTROOAR
HEFEIFEARAEIRNESEER -EFY
EHEERRMED T IRE -

EFEERNEAEARELRESTBIN—
F - ERTHBUFEFTEEH IUZELA
ZES—ESNERENARUFEERTEEEH &
FENERERRKBTFET TR W
REEFEECHIHENETER-

REFE BFERTARNGH BHIEFIM
EZBENHELTHREHINT -

Attendance/Number

of meetings

Name of Director EElS HEBERH
Mr. Bian Yu BF&E 5/5
Mr. Bian Weican BEREE 5/5
Ms. Bian Shu Bk 5/5
Mr. Bian Jianguang BEMiE 5/5
Mr. Chen Jiancheng R ST 5/5
Mr. Fung Kui Kei VishiER =S 5/5
Mr. Zhang Bing RIRAE 5/5
Mr. Li Jiannan B L 5/5
Mr. Zhu Xian Bo MERILE 5/5
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GENERAL MEETINGS

During the Year, the Company convened one annual general
meeting held on 30 June 2020 and one extraordinary
general meeting held on 12 August 2020. The respective
attendance records of individual Board members are set out
below:

RRXE

REEE AATR _E_EFEB=+HAH
—AREBFEASGERN _ZE_ZFENA+_H
BT —ABREREAG - EINEEERESEN
HE S EREs T -

Attendance/Number

of meetings

Name of Director BEENS HE SR
Mr. Bian Yu BFRE 2/2
Mr. Bian Weican BRIERE 2/2
Ms. Bian Shu BYut 2/2
Mr. Bian Jianguang BREEE 2/2
Mr. Chen Jiancheng BRI ST E 2/2
Mr. Zhang Bing SRIASEE 2/2
Mr. Fung Kui Kei S E TS 2/2
Mr. Li Jiannan BSEm L 2/2
Mr. Zhu Xian Bo MERTE 2/2

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Directors shall be
subject to election at the Company’s general meetings with
a term of office of three years and may be re-elected. The
Company has implemented a set of effective procedures
for the appointment of new Directors. The Nomination
Committee shall, in accordance with provisions of the
relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of Association,
take into account the practical situations of the Company,
consider the selection criteria, selection procedures and
terms of office of the Directors, and record and submit the
resolutions to the Board for approval. All newly nominated
Directors are subject to election and approval at general
meetings.

ZEREEESF

RBABERMER EFSARETATRRAE L
ERE FHA=ZF YR ESHET-FAAF
EREEMESER —EANIEF -RLEZEY
ARBAEBEEERRABERMRE
EBERFABDNERBERE  EREFHNREE
A BREREF IR TR REDRZRRETE
EEME-FREMERRNEFHACKRRIAG
BERA A
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy in March
2015. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. Selection of candidates is based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The ultimate decision is based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates is expected to
bring to the Board.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has a nomination policy of having a board
of directors with a diversity of skills and experience. The
selection and proposed appointment of the Directors
are submitted to the approval of both the Nomination
Committee and the Board, and the re-election of Directors
is conducted in accordance with the Articles. The criteria
for assessing a candidate include his/her reputation for
integrity, accomplishment, experience and reputation in
the business and industry and commitment in respect of
sufficient time, interest and attention to the businesses of
the Company and its subsidiaries. If a candidate is proposed
to be appointed as an independent non-executive Director,
his/her independence shall be assessed in accordance with
the requirements under the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy adopted by the Company provides
the Board with the discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to Shareholders subject to the provisions of the
constitutional documents of the Company, and applicable
laws and regulations. In considering whether to recommend
or declare dividends, the Board will also take into account
a number of factors including but not limited to operations,
earnings, financial condition, cash flow situation, business
conditions and strategies, interests of shareholders, any
restrictions on payment of dividends and any other factors
that the Board may consider relevant. Any final dividend for a
financial year will be subject to Shareholders’ approval.

EFEZIEEER

EFEgN T LF-RAEMEFTTZ IR
RoARBDRAKREMEFTEZ TIEARAERE
REENEZm RBEANER -RIZTEHBESR
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MAERTE °
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RARBBRX AR B R ER AR
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee consists of three members.
The employee representative Supervisor, namely Mr.
Chen Xinhua, was elected by employee representatives,
whilst the remaining two Supervisors were elected by the
Shareholders. Mr. Chen Xinhua had initially entered into a
service contract with the Company on 1 January 2016 and
was re-appointed on 31 May 2019, while each of Mr. Fu
Jun and Mr. Fang Zhiguo signed a letter of appointment
on 31 May 2019. Pursuant to the Articles of Association,
the term of office of the Supervisors shall be three years.
The functions and duties of the Supervisory Committee
include, but are not limited to, reviewing and verifying
financial reports and, if in doubt, appointing certified
public accountant and practicing auditor to re-examine the
Company’s financial information; monitoring the business
activities of the Company; supervising the performance of
the Directors, the chairman of the Board and other senior
management members, and monitoring whether they had
acted in violation of the applicable laws, regulations and
Articles of Association in the performance of their duties;
requesting the Directors, the chairman of the Board and
senior management members to rectify actions which
damage the Company's interests; and exercising other
rights given to them under the Articles of Association.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
on securities transactions entered into by the Directors
and Supervisors, in order to govern such transactions.
Having made specific written enquiries, all Directors and
Supervisors confirmed their compliance with the provisions
under the Model Code throughout the Year.

48

Exg
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Wong Shum Wai (formerly known as Wong Hon Kit) and
Ms. Shen Qiong are the joint company secretaries of the
Company.

Being the joint company secretaries, Mr. Wong Shum Wai
and Ms. Shen Qiong serve an important role in ensuring
good information flow within the Board and that the Board
policies and procedures are followed. Both of them are
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and facilitating induction and professional
development of Directors.

During the Year, the joint company secretaries of the
Company complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The
biographical details of each of the said joint company
secretaries are set out in the section headed “Biographies
of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” above in
this annual report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Financial Statements which give a true and fair view of the
Group's state of affairs, results and cash flows for the Year
and in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the HKICPA, and the disclosure
requirements under the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong). The Company selected appropriate
accounting policies and applied them consistently based
on prudent and reasonable judgments and estimates. The
Board considers that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in business for the foreseeable future and is not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to any events or
conditions that may affect the business of the Group or cast
doubts on its ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited, the
Company’s external auditor, with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditors’ Report” below in this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the establishment and
development of the internal control and risk management
framework, as well as the regular review of the internal
control procedures and policies and risk management
practices of the Group. The Audit Committee is responsible
for advising on and overseeing the internal control and
risk management issues, and assuming an active role in
communicating the best practice in the aforesaid issues
to the Directors and senior management of the Group.
The senior management members are responsible for
the execution of internal control policies and procedures
as well as risk assessment practices implemented by
the Group. Amid the Group's set-up of its internal audit
department, the CFO and the joint company secretaries
of the Group are currently carrying out the internal audit
function and assisting the Board and senior management
to review, maintain and advise on the internal control and
risk management framework and the implementation of the
relevant policies, procedures and practices of the Group.

The Group's risk management practices are to manage the
risks that it internally and externally encounters. With the
assistance of the whistle blowing policies to be adhered to
by all staff, the Group's risks could be kept at a manageable
level.

During the Year, the Board or its representatives conducted
a regular walk-through examination on internal controls
and risk management throughout the Group, including
analysing the internal control and risk management system
as a whole, interviewing and discussing with managers on
issues in which their respective departments were involved,
assessing on the effectiveness of policies, procedures
and practices, and taking advices from the joint company
secretaries and CFO.

The Board also carry out a review of the enhanced internal
control policies and procedures as well as risk management
practices of the Group in accordance with paragraph C.2.1
of the CG Code annually, including financial, operational and
compliance controls as well as risk management functions
of the Group. The Board had reviewed the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control policies and procedures as well
as risk management practices for the Year, and considered
that they are adequate and effective.
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The Board, the Audit Committee, the Company’s senior
management will continue to review the relevant policies,
procedures and practices in order to maintain a high level of
corporate governance over the operation of the Group.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited was re-appointed as the
external auditor of the Company on 30 June 2020. During
the Year, the fees paid to Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited in
respect of its annual audit services provided to the Group
was approximately HK$1.16 million.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the selection and appointment of the
external auditor during the Year.

A summary of services provided by the external auditors for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and their corresponding
remuneration are as follows:
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Nature of service Amount
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HK$°000

FHET

Audit service 1,157
B RS

Non-audit service* 1,164

JEFESHERTS

* In connection with the major transaction, continuing connected
transactions and interim review
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company aims to, by virtue of its corporate governance
structure, enable all Shareholders an equal opportunity to
exercise their rights in an informed manner and allow them
to engage actively with the Company. Under the Articles
of Association, the shareholder communication policy and
other relevant internal procedures of the Company, the
Shareholders enjoy, among others, the following rights:

(i) Participation in general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for direct communication between the
Board and the Shareholders. The Company encourages
the participation of the Shareholders through annual
general meetings and other general meetings where
the Shareholders meet and exchange views with the
Board, and to exercise their right to vote at meetings.
The Company shall arrange notices of meetings and
circulars containing details on proposed resolutions
to be sent to the Shareholders. In the case of the
annual general meeting, such notice shall be given 20
business days before the date of the meeting, and in
the case of an extraordinary general meeting, notice
shall be given 10 business days or 15 days (whichever
is longer) before the date of the meeting. At general
meetings, separate resolutions are proposed on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

(ii) Enquiries and proposals to the Board

The Company encourages Shareholders to attend
Shareholders’ meetings and make proposals by
either directly raising questions on both operational
and governance matters to the Board and Board
Committees at the general meetings or providing
written notice of such proposals for the attention of
the company secretary at the registered office of
the Company in the PRC currently located at TENGY
Industrial Park, Paitou Town, Zhuji City, Zhejiang
Province, The PRC or the Company's principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Room 1201, 12th Floor,
Chung Ying Building, 20 Connaught Road West,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.
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(ili) Convening extraordinary general meetings

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board
shall convene an extraordinary general meeting or
class meeting as soon as possible and in any case
within two months, where any Shareholder holding,
severally or jointly, 10% or more of the Company's
issued shares carrying voting rights requests in writing
for the convening of an extraordinary general meeting
or class meeting by signing and submitting one or
several written requests with the same format and
contents and specifying the agenda of the meeting. An
extraordinary general meeting or class meeting shall
be convened by the Board as soon as practicable and
in any case within two months upon receipt of the
aforesaid written request. The aforesaid shareholding
shall be calculated on the basis of the date on which
the relevant Shareholders submit the written request.
If the Board fails to dispatch a notice of convening such
meeting within 30 days upon receipt of the aforesaid
written request, the Shareholder(s) who proposed
to convene the meeting is/are entitled to request in
writing the Supervisory Committee to convene the
meeting. If the Supervisory Committee agrees to
convene the meeting but does not issue a notice of
the meeting within five (5) days after the passing of
the relevant resolution by the Supervisory Committee,
the Shareholders individually or jointly holding 10%
or more of the shares of the Company for more than
90 consecutive days may convene and hold such a
meeting by themselves. The procedures for convening
such meeting should follow those for convening a
general meeting or class meeting of Shareholders by
the Board to the greatest extent practicable.
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All reasonable expenses incurred for the purpose
of convening and holding the aforesaid meeting by
Shareholders due to the failure of the Board to hold
such meeting in response to the aforesaid request

REAESEREBRIGEERBITEEME
TERILBITEHEMNE HAFEEN—1)
GEERBERARBRAE TRHART
RIGKBESFRIFIRF O

shall be borne by the Company. Such expenses shall
be deducted from the amounts due by the Company
to the Director(s) who have defaulted their duties.

(iv) (ivi EREAE LIRHEBRNERF

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
a general meeting

REAERAEERARBDEBEENBRE
EF‘ ﬁ*&?mﬁﬂtm&gnﬁj %%ﬁj E‘I'T?
BEAXRRBEBRRAENRNI% I LRI
ROBRERRAGETH+RANUER
EARNEEGREBFHER MESGRE
FWEIEREEEMN AN G HMRRIL
RAERRREXRRAG UMtER -

In overseeing and monitoring the business operation
of the Company, the Shareholders have the right to
put forward proposals and raise inquiries. Shareholders
individually or together holding 3% or more of the
Company’s voting Shares have the right to put up ad-
hoc proposals in writing to the Board within ten days
before the holding of the general meeting, and the
Board shall notify other Shareholders within two days
after receipt of the proposals and submit them to the
general meeting for consideration and approval.

PR ZRERNT ABNRRASHESH
IWEEEEHEEI BRARZERERE I

ANAERER TBERKEBERZME
EJJ AYMRRARE

The contents of the proposals to be raised shall be
within the scope of duties of the general meetings.
It shall have a clear topic and specific matters to be
resolved on, and shall be in compliance with relevant
requirements of the applicable laws, administrative
regulations and the Articles of Association.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS BEXMHF

RIBEAATRN — B BENA =+ HEBN
B RARYEBERAAEL T FA
BB E M R A R T 2 o

Save for the amendment of the Articles of Association
pursuant to a special resolution of the Company passed on
30 June 2020, there was no change in the constitutional
documents of the Company during the Year.

EEERMBN BT A AT R BRI EILE]
HER-

The Articles of Association is available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a well-established integrated atmospheric
pollution control solution provider, with a primary focus
on particulate emission control by offering mega-size
precipitators to customers in various industries. During the
Year, the Group mainly offers three types of precipitators:
electrostatic precipitators, bag filter precipitators and
electrostatic-bag composite precipitators.

The principal activities and other particulars of the
Company's subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the Financial
Statements.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS

The Group's financial position as at 31 December 2020 and
the Group's profit for the Year are set out in the section
headed "“Financial Highlights” above in this annual report.

A discussion and analysis of the Group's performance during
the Year and the key factors affecting its financial position
and results are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” above in this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's results, assets and liabilities for
the last five financial years is set out in the section headed
“Five-Year Financial Summary” below in this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited Financial
Statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(I) Particulars of the transactions

Hereinbelow are a list of the connected transactions
entered into by the Company or members of the
Group with connected parties (i) during the Year; or (ii)
prior to the listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing”) that continued upon Listing and were
disclosed in the prospectus dated 24 September 2015
prepared for the purpose of the Listing (“Prospectus”)
and circular of projection of related party/connected
transactions dated 11 May 2020 (“Circular”) with
no further changes after implementation except as
provided herein otherwise.
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On 25 April 2015, the Company, as lessee, entered into a tenancy
agreement which renewed on 1 January 2018, the renewed
agreement ending on 31 December 2020 with TGL, as lessor
and the holding company of the Group, with respect to the office
premises with a gross floor area of approximately 2,700 sg.m.
situated at Xinle Village and Xinsheng Village, Paitou Town, Zhu;ji City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC (“TGL Office Building”) for use as office
building (“TGL Office Lease Agreement”). Reason for entering into
the TGL Office Lease Agreement was that the Company commenced
the use of the TGL Office Building four years ago mainly as its office,
and any relocation would cause unnecessary costs and disruption.
The annual rental payable by the Company under the TGL Office
Lease Agreement was determined on normal commercial terms
with reference to, and was reviewed by professional surveyors
and valuers independent of the Group to be fair, reasonable and
consistent with, the prevailing market rates of similar properties in
the locality. The Company would have the right to renew the lease
under the TGL Office Lease Agreement subject to compliance
with all applicable laws and regulations of the PRC as well as the
requirements under the Listing Rules. The lessor also granted the
Company an option to purchase the TGL Office Building subject
to the terms of the lease under the TGL Office Lease Agreement,
and such option is exercisable in whole or in part with respect to
such premises. The price of purchase, where applicable, of the TGL
Office Building shall be the higher of (i) the fair market value of the
relevant premises at the time of exercise of the option and (i) an
amount calculated by reference to the net book value of the relevant
premises at the time of commencement of the lease, the rental
amount, the leasing period as well as the Group's financing costs.
The amount of total rental payment to TGL for the Year is included
in note 35 to the Financial Statements. The Group expects the total
rental fees payable to TGL in 2020 under the TGL Office Lease
Agreement to be approximately RMB240,000.

RIE—FHENB_+HH &ARE (EAEEAN) EXREEZTRA
ETGL (FEAEMAA) BAF PR T A 8B T e mE a2 Ko
A AR EEAAL2, 700 FE KM AEYE ((TGLIAKIE)) 571
HEWR BR 22— N\E—8B—HELN BNHBPEE_S =5
+-B=+—H1E FRAKRERSE (TGLAZEHEWRE) o511
TGLMAEZERERENEREAA DR EERBBERTGLITA KX
B TERERAE EABREEE TV BN A KSR ERES
B o RABINTGUIR AEREHE NENHNEFEER SR —REER
R R EEHMEEYENETHEBEE - BUNRAERNEEAS
RERGHEEEETGLBAERERZ THERNNEERST
BREEB AN TFAEBEREMBLUYENERN MEREFT AR E
HETTGLINAEHERE TWHELN BT S E BB TEEE
BERA EHRANRE - HBAATERAADRHEBETGLIHA KX
EAEER AT TGLIRAEHEWRE THHEERFARRE  mA
NE AR Y ETER BRI D RIBE -TGLIHAKIENEES (0
BE) BA THERSE ()VTHEEIZER BEYENAFHEKI)
2B ERRRERYENREFE He N AEERER A
STENEEE A EERMERTCLZ M E S BB E NIRRT
3o REEFEH _ZE _ZERBTICLIAEHEHRE M FTGLIAE
EERMERENA ANR240,0007T °

For further details regarding the
TGL Office Lease Agreement,
please refer to the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in the

Prospectus.

ERTGLIAZEHERZEN
HE BALHBRERTE
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On 25 April 2015, the Company entered with TGL, the holding For further details regarding the
company of the Group, into a power supply agreement which TGL Power Supply Agreement,
renewed on 1 January 2018, the renewed agreement ending on please refer to the section headed
31 December 2020 (“TGL Power Supply Agreement”), under “Connected Transactions” in the
which TGL would procure supply of electricity to the Company Prospectus.

in the premises on lease from TGL under the TGL Office Lease

Agreement and the TGL Industrial Lease Agreement in relation to

daily operation of the Company's office as well as the manufacturing

and processing of goods which include the outer casings of the

precipitators. Reason for entering into the subject agreement was

that the Company commenced the use of the premises under

the TGL Office Lease Agreement and the TGL Industrial Lease

Agreement four years ago, and such premises are owned by TGL

and accordingly the power supply services registered with the

relevant power enterprises are in the name of TGL. In light of the

foregoing circumstances, any procurement for alternate source of

power supply would cause unnecessary costs and disruption. Whilst

no additional costs would be charged by TGL, the amount payable

by the Company under the TGL Power Supply Agreement for the

provision of electricity supply was determined on with reference to

the fee scale implemented by the PRC Government. Payment would

be furnished to TGL on a cost basis on 25th day of each calendar

month in accordance with the actual amount of electricity consumed

by the Company of that particular month, and such consumption

amount should be confirmed by both parties to the TGL Power

Supply Agreement by jointly inspecting the readings on the relevant

meters on bth day of each calendar month. The amount of total utility

payment to TGL for the Year is included in note 35 to the Financial

Statements. The Group expects the total utility fees payable to TGL

in 2020 under the TGL Power Supply Agreement to be capped at

approximately RMB5,000,000.

A TE-AFEMAT+HER AATEAERERATTGLIIUME BARTGLEERZNESFIE H
WE BN "2 \F—B—HE&YN BYFHAEE"_T_ZF+- 2RERIREFERZI—fi-
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B UE RSN A AR BRBTIGLH B H RN BN HERUNEE
DB2ERERFRITHNERSEETE A 2SR BRESAERESE
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On 25 April 2015, the Company, as purchaser, entered with Tianjie For further details regarding
General Machinery, as service provider and the wholly-owned the Processing Services
subsidiary of TGL, into a processing service agreement which Agreement, please refer to the
renewed on 1 January 2018, the renewed agreement ending on section headed “Connected
31 December 2020 (“Processing Services Agreement”), under Transactions” in the Prospectus.
which Tianjie General Machinery agreed to provide processing

services such as the processing of steel to the Group. Reason

for entering into the Processing Services Agreement was that

Tianjie General Machinery has been providing the Company with

processing services of consistent quality since January 2012 and

that Tianjie General Machinery is familiar with the Group's products

and requirements. Further, due to the geographical proximity

between Tianjie General Machinery and us, the transportation

costs are relatively low. In light of the foregoing circumstances,

the Directors considered it would be in the interests of the Group

to continue its relationship with Tianjie General Machinery on

sourcing of such processing services therefrom upon the Listing.

The amount payable by the Company under the Processing Services

Agreement would be ascertained through its regular contacts with

independent suppliers in order to keep itself abreast of the market

conditions and accordingly to ensure that its engagement with

Tianjie General Machinery for the supply of processing services

would be fair and reasonable as well as in line with prevailing

market practices. Furthermore, before placing any purchase order of

processing services, the Company would also obtain quotations from

comparable processing services that might be available from other

independent suppliers for the purpose of determining whether viable

alternatives of comparable quality could be obtained in a timely

manner and at the most competitive price. The amount of total

processing services payment to Tianjie General Machinery for the

Year is included in note 35 to the Financial Statements. The Group

expects the total service fees payable to Tianjie General Machinery

in 2020 under the Processing Services Agreement to be capped at

approximately RMB8,500,000.

RZZ—HFMB_+HB ARE FREH) BEHTGLEEME AEANMIRBHENESFIS
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On 1 April 2020, the Company entered into a processing services For further details regarding
agreement (“New Processing Services Agreement”) with Tianjie the New Processing Services
New Material, a wholly-owned subsidiary of TGL, the controlling Agreement, please refer to the
shareholder of the Company, for a term of three years up to 31 announcement of the Company
March 2023. Pursuant to the New Processing Services Agreement, dated 1 April 2020.

Tianjie New Material agreed to provide processing services of

rock wool to the Company subject to the terms and conditions

thereunder. Reasons for entering into the New Processing Services

Agreement was that the Board is of the view that the engagement

of Tianjie New Material as a service provider can help the Group

leverage on the extensive experience of TGL in processing services

and ensure a smooth business operation of the Group, thereby

bringing benefits to the sustainable development of the Group. The

service fees for the processing services payable by the Company to

Tianjie New Material will be determined by the parties in accordance

with (i) the process of the processing services; (i) the relevant

labour costs to be incurred by Tianjie New Material for the provision

of processing services; (iii) the quality requirement of the Company

for the provision of processing services; and (iv) for every batch of

rock wool, processing service fee shall be determined by Tianjie

New Material with reference to prevailing market price. The amount

of total processing services payment to Tianjie New Material for

the Year is included in note 35 to the Financial Statements. The

annual cap for the service fees under the New Processing Services

Agreement will not exceed RMB3 million throughout the term of the

agreement.
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On 1 June 2020, the Company entered into the sale and purchase
agreement with Tengy New Energy, which is owned as to
approximately 85.02% by TGL, the controlling shareholder of the
Company, pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to
acquire and Tengy New Energy conditionally agreed to sell 49% of
the equity interest of I BB ZE R SEB RAF (Inner Mongolia
Guodian Hejie Wind Energy Co., Ltd.) for the consideration of
RMB73,500,000. Reasons for entering into the agreement is that it
will provide an investment opportunity for the Company to diversify
its business portfolio by entering into the wind power market in the
PRC. The Board is of the view that the acquisition will provide the
Company with an investment opportunity to broaden its income
stream, further enhance the value of the Group and maximise
returns to the Shareholders.

A TEZERB—B ARFEXZERER (HEAFERRKRE
TGLEEE#I85.02% Em) s EE W BIL ' ZAATERFRRUK
BomMRXENERERGARHEARTRABNEZERSEERATZ
49% R > B4 AR 173,500,0007T ° ST Z MR E  Hig
RENBRHUEEBEFTERETSZTICEREEHTESHKRE
BRE-EFERNR WRFEERAEQFDRMRERT  LURFAEIL
AR E—TRESAERNEE UHRELMRROER -

nvironmental Technolo

For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company
dated 1 June 2020 and the
circular of the Company dated 26
June 2020.
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(1)

Confirmation opinion by independent
non-executive Directors on connected
transactions

The independent non-executive Directors (Note 1)
reviewed all connected transactions as mentioned
above and confirmed that:

(1)  Such transactions were conducted in the
ordinary course of business of the Company;

(2)  Such transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms or, if transactions available
for comparison were insufficient to determine
whether the terms of such transactions are
normal commercial terms, from the perspective
of the Company, the terms of such transactions
were no less favourable than the terms offered
to or by independent third parties; and

(3)  Such transactions were conducted in accordance
with the terms of the agreements governing
relevant transactions, which terms were fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Note 1: All connected transactions have been confirmed by Mr.
Zhang Bing, Mr. Fung Kui Kei and Mr. Li Jianna.

Confirmation opinion from the Company’s
external auditor on connected transactions

Having reviewed the connected transactions disclosed
in this annual report, Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited
issued a letter to the Board to confirm nothing came
to their attention that caused them to believe such
connected transactions:

(1) not having been approved by the Board;

(2) not having been carried out, in all material
respects, based on the pricing policy of the
Company (if the transaction involves provision of
goods or services by the Company);

(3) not having been carried out, in all material
respects, in accordance with terms of
agreements governing the relevant transactions;
and

(4) having exceeded the caps as disclosed in the
Prospectus.
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(IV) Related party/connected transactions in (IV) XABREERLRBZMFERRMEE
note 35 to the audited financial statements 35HIRAER TS RAER 2
of the Company for the Year

Out of the list of the related party/connected M PSRRI 3T VR BB F
transactions set out in note 35 to the Financial RBEF > NI ZEM EHRAE T
Statements, the following transactions constitute ABNRER G TEZ2EEBTARRTE
connected transactions for the purpose of Chapter ZEREREHIOT

14A of the Listing Rules under which the requirements
have been fully complied with. Details of the said
compliance are as follows:

Whether or not
constituting connected
Type of Agreement for transaction or continuing Whether or not in compliance with
connected  the connected connected transaction Details of the connected the disclosure requirements under
Connected party t ti tr tion (connected relationship)  transaction Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
RERS EEHBRRERZNFE EEEMALHRAETHAZ
MER B MER B hE MER 5 (MR MERZ HRBERE
TGL Lease TGL Office Lease  Continuing connected Lease of premises to the Yes
Agreement transaction (a Controlling Company for use as its office  (exempt from the circular and
Shareholder) building the independent Shareholders’
approval requirements but subject
to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements pursuant
to Rule 14A.76 (2)(a) of the Listing
Rules, having taken into account the
aggregated annual transaction amount
under the Zhejiang Qinuo Office Lease
Agreement, the TGL Office Lease
Agreement and the TGL Industrial
Lease Agreement in light of similarity
in their nature)
TGL =N TGURAZTE  HEMERS B—ERKR FAREBYERERLL B
i ®) EgEhas (R ERUME SN & w0

REHERE TCURAZHERER
TGLIXHERENFERZEE R
& EHRAIE14A.T6(2) I EE 8
TRRREILRRMEREERET
RR - FEERRASHE)

nvironmental Technology Co., Ltd
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Whether or not
constituting connected
Type of Agreement for transaction or continuing Whether or not in compliance with
connected  the cc ted ted ti tion Details of the connected the disclosure requirements under
Connected party transaction transactions (connected relationship)  transaction Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
HERS EEERRERZ NS EEEMALHRAETHAZ
MER L MEXSHE MERS (FHERME) MERFHA HRBERE
TGL Supply of TGL Power Supply  Continuing connected Supply of electricity to the Yes
utilities Agreement transaction (a Controlling Company in the premises (being a continuing connected
Shareholder) on lease from TGL under the  transaction on buying of consumer
TGL Office Lease Agreement  services exempt from the reporting,
and the TGL Industrial Lease  annual review, announcement, circular
Agreement in relation to daily and the independent Shareholders'
operation of the Company's  approval requirements pursuant to
office as well as the Rule 14A.97 of the Listing Rules)
manufacturing and processing
of certain goods
TGL REABEE TOLESHE FEMERS B—ER PXAAREGCLHAZEE =
(&) BEMTGLLEMEREN (AEEHERBNEEMRERS R
TGLEAMNMERHEE N B ETRAIF14A7RER RETR
BARBMWAZHEEEN R FEBR QA5 BRRBIKER
RERMIETERZE HAERE)
Tianjie General Provision of  Processing Continuing connected Provision of processing Yes
Machinery services Services transaction (a subsidiary of  services, such as the (exempt from the circular and
Agreement a Controlling Shareholder)  processing of steel, to the the independent Shareholders’
Group approval requirements but subject
to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements pursuant
to Rule 14A.76 (2)(a) of the Listing
Rules)
K2 BRI RILRE  MIRBHR FERERS A—ER RAEERUEMMNIZEN =
R ERBIHT B AT TR (1R EHIRBIE14AT602) 1K ER SR
BTRRREIREMLEREEER
FRR FEBHRASHE)
Tianjie New Provision of  Processing Continuing connected Provision of processing Yes
Material services Services transaction (a subsidiary of  services, such as the (exempt from the circular and
Agreement a Controlling Shareholder)  processing of rock wool, to  the independent Shareholders’
the Group approval requirements but subject
to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements pursuant
to Rule 14A.76 (2)(a) of the Listing
Rules)
KZHME RURE  NIRBHR FEBERS h—ERR nEEERMUNIRS ms =B
REMIBATED) BT (1R LTRBIE14AT6(2) @)K ER R
BTFRERRELRRAERTE B
BrRR FEBRRASEHE)
Tengy New Energy Acquisition of Sale and purchase  Connected transaction (a Acquisition of 49% of the Yes
equity interest agreement Controlling Shareholder) equity interest of RXEE  (subject to the reporting,
EMZREMEERZAR (Inner  announcement and Independent
Mongoha Guodian Hejie Shareholders’ approval requirements
Wind Energy Co., Ltd.) pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
for the consideration of Rules)
RMB73,500,000
KEZHAER U BB RG 1 BEmR WERS (B—ERER UREBAKHKT3,500,000ch 2
BARLESMZRAEER (BETLHRAEUAZHNER 2
REVZAI%FEHE HREULRRHERT)
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The registration of the transfer of Shares will be suspended
from Friday, 25 June 2021 to Wednesday, 30 June 2021
(both days inclusive) in order to ascertain the Shareholders’
entitlement to the attendance in the annual general meeting
to be convened for the Year (“2020 AGM"). All Shareholders
who wish to attend the 2020 AGM must deliver their
properly completed H Shares transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates to the Registrar of H
Shares in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong,
no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 24 June 2021, for
registration.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the Group's sales to its five largest customers
and its largest customer accounted for 34.07% and 8.59%
(2019: 41.7% and 12.8%) of the Group's total sales,
respectively.

For the Year, the Group's purchases from its five largest
suppliers and its largest supplier accounted for 20.87% and
6.22% (2019: 28.5% and 10.1%) of the Group's total cost of
sales, respectively.

During the Year, none of the Directors, their close associates
nor the Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
and belief of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued capital) had any interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
and construction in progress during the Year are set out in
notes 16 to the Financial Statements.

HEmERGBBRES
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 30 to the Financial
Statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE
RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 90 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of PRC Company Law (FEI/AE)7%), amounted to
approximately RMB336 million.

BANK LOANS

Details of bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2020
are set out in note 28 to the Financial Statements.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY'S
SECURITIES

At no time during the Year was the Company, or any of
its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the Company
or their respective associates or close associates (as
respectively defined under the Listing Rules) to have any
right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as defined in the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
("SFO") or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and the Supervisors being in office during the
Year and up to the date of this annual report were as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Bian Yu (Chairman)

Mr. Bian Weican

Ms. Bian Shu
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Bian Jianguang

Mr. Zhu Xian Bo

Mr. Chen Jiancheng
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Li Jiannan

Mr. Fung Kui Kei

Mr. Zhang Bing
Supervisors

Mr. Chen Xinhua (Chairman)

Mr. Fu Jun
Mr. Fang Zhiguo

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of each of the Directors, the Supervisors
and senior management members of the Company are
set out in the section headed "Biographies of Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management” above in this annual
report.
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CONFIRMATION ON INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation on independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the Company
considers all independent non-executive Directors are
independent pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS" AND SUPERVISORS’
SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTER OF
APPOINTMENTS

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors
entered into a service contract with the Company on the
respective appointment date.

The principal particulars of these service contracts and
letters of appointment are (a) for a term of three years
commencing from the respective effective dates of their
appointment; and (b) subject to termination in accordance
with their respective terms. Each Director and Supervisor
had been re-appointed (or in the case of Mr. Zhu Xian Bo,
newly appointed) for a term of 3 years commencing from 31
May 2019.

As required under the Opinions on Further Promotion
of Standardising Operations and Intensifying Reform of
Overseas Listed Companies (Guojingmaogai No. [1999]230),
external Supervisors comprise more than half of the
Supervisory Committee, among whom Mr. Fu Jun and Mr.
Fang Zhiguo are independent.

None of the Directors and the Supervisors had entered
into a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACT, TRANSACTION
OR ARRANGEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors and the Supervisors or an entity
connected with the Directors and the Supervisors had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract,
transaction or arrangement of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party during or subsisted at the end of the Year.

Save as the related party/connected/continuing connected
transactions disclosed herein, no contracts of significance
(including those in relation to provision of services) between
members of the Group and the controlling shareholder of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee were set up for, among others, reviewing and
making recommendations on remuneration policy and
scheme for Directors, Supervisors, senior management and
employees, taking into account salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors and performance of the Group.

The Company has not adopted any share award scheme or
share option scheme.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND FIVE HIGHEST-PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, the Supervisors
and five highest-paid individuals are set out in notes 13 to
the Financial Statements, under which the bonuses paid
to or otherwise receivable by the relevant individuals form
part of the item “Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind".
During the Year, no amounts were paid to or received by
any of the relevant individuals (i) as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Company and (ii) as compensation for
loss of any office in connection with the management of the
affairs of any member of the Group.

PENSION SCHEMES

Particulars of the pension schemes of the Group are set out
in note 13 to the Financial Statements.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT
OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” above in
this annual report, there were no changes during the Year
to any information required to be disclosed by the Directors
and the Supervisors pursuant to paragraph (a) to (e) and (g)
of Rule 13.51 (2) of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ and chief executive’'s interest and/or
short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions
of each of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules were as
follows:

1. Long position in respect of domestic shares of the
Company (“Domestic Shares”) as at 31 December
2020:

ESRERITBABRE AT BN 18
Bﬁﬂzﬁ&{f#ﬂ’ﬁgﬁn&/i

RIZBZEF+_A=+—H FxATREEFR
BRITRABRAADREEAEHEE (E&

REH RS KGIHEXVED) AR  AERARD &

BEFPEATHN AR BDIRERF RIS KA

BEI2FHNREFENE M ER LKA ; 5

ARE LTRSS TRANARRE R ZFTAI#E
mRRBEWT

1. S CECFFEF A=A —HREARER
BER(INER) HEHFE -

Approximate % Approximate %

Capacity/ Number of of total issued of Company’s
Name of Director Nature of interest Domestic Shares Domestic Shares share capital
EE&T ERAHE
NERBH BRAH
EEps g/ EmitE NERHE BB (%) BB 5 (%)
Mr. Bian Yu Beneficial owner 13,266,032 13.27 9.83

BFRE BGEBA
Interest in a controlled 58,852,300 58.85 43.59

corporation (Note 1)
SR EEES (3 1)

Mr. Bian Jianguang Beneficial owner 6,843,000 6.84 5.07

BENEE BG#EBA
Interest in a controlled 58,852,300 58.85 43.59

corporation (Note 1)

RERERED (Wat1)
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Approximate %

Approximate %

Capacity/ Number of of total issued of Company’s
Name of Director Nature of interest Domestic Shares Domestic Shares share capital
EE&T ERAHE
NERBH BRAHY
EEps g/ EmitE WERHE BAE (%) BB B LE(%)
Mr. Bian Weican Beneficial owner 1,851,000 1.85 1.37
BRIZEE BG#EBA
Ms. Bian Shu Beneficial owner 3,933,000 3.93 2.91
Bt BG#EBA
Interest in a controlled
corporation (Note 1) 58,852,300 58.85 43.59
SEHERES Wit1)
Mr. Chen Jiancheng Beneficial owner 1,851,000 1.85 137
Bek 222 20 S A BmEAA
Notes: Bzt :
1. According to the disclosure of interest filings, these 58,852,300 1. REFMEENEEEFEEEN XQATNZE

domestic shares in the Company are beneficially owned by
TGL which is in turn approximately 64.08% owned by Mr. Bian
Yu, approximately 22.81% owned by Mr. Bian Jianguang and
approximately 13.11% owned by Ms. Bian Shu. Pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Bian Yu, Mr. Bian Jianguang and Ms.
Bian Shu are deemed to be interested in TGL's interest in the
Company.

58,852,300 NE RRITHTCLE A » MTGL
BB FEEERL64.08%8 8 BB EY
SEWE #2281 %NERRBERZTHERDN
13.11 % & o ARIR 5 R HAE R HIEXVER >
BFREE BEMAERBGRLTWRANRTGL
A A B R P EE R
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Substantial shareholders’ interests and/or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company

According to the register of substantial shareholders (not
being a Director or chief executive of the Company) required
to be kept under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows
that as at 31 December 2020, the Company had been
notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests
and short positions. These interests are in addition to
those disclosed above in respect of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company.

A Long position in respect of Domestic Shares as at 31

FERRNEL2E RIS ARG B
R KA

BB S R H G R G EXVER 336 IR EFER
TERK LFEARTNEFABRITHAL %
MFrscik R -2 -_FF+-_RA=+—H0 &2
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FEEUERBNEARDEERERITHAE
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December 2020: BHIFE -

Approximate %  Approximate %

Capacity/ Number of of total issued of Company'’s

Name Nature of interest Domestic Shares Domestic Shares share capital

HEET E VNG

NEREHR R

21/ 4 51p/ #E4E RNERHE  BABESLE%)  BAEDE%)

TGL (Note 1) Beneficial owner 58,852,300 58.85 43.59

TGL (#fzt1) BREEBA

Ms. Bao Guo (Note 2) Family interest of spouse 72,118,332 72.12 53.42
LT (HE2) e BN REER

Ms. Xu You (Note 3) Family interest of spouse 65,695,300 65.70 48.66
Wit (H523) R EE PR

Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan (Note 4) ~ Family interest of spouse 62,785,300 62.79 46.51
BERELYE W) R EE PSR

BRIBLRIBEEER)I  Beneficial owner 5,727200 5.73 4.24

REREGBEE

(BREH)

ERBLRRERERR) BaEBA
REREGBEE

(BREH)
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Notes:

2. Long

TGL is directly interested in approximately 43.59% in the
Company.

Ms. Bao Guo, the spouse of Mr. Bian Yu, is deemed to be
interested in Mr. Bian Yu's interests in the Company by virtue
of the SFO.

Ms. Xu You, the spouse of Mr. Bian Jianguang, is deemed to be
interested in Mr. Bian Jianguang's interests in the Company by
virtue of the SFO.

Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan, the spouse of Ms. Bian Shu, is deemed

to be interested in Ms. Bian Shu's interests in the Company by
virtue of the SFO.

position in respect of H Shares of the Company

(“"H Shares ") as at 31 December 2020:

TGLEZBER ANAFIAI43.59% I i 2 ©

RIEBHFRAE RG> BEL T (BFRERNE
B WEBNBFREMFNARBDEETER

e

RIBE S RAEEE > R+ BEITEN
BB AR AN B R REFMFNA AR #E
WA

RS RIME A BRERE BN
D) R ANB L TANA AT RN
B

RIE_EF+_F=+—HHRALEHE
(THER ) }¥ B BI4F B -

Approximate %  Approximate %

Capacity/ Number of of total issued of Company'’s
Name Nature of interest H Shares H Shares share capital
HEET E VNG
HEAgG 48 1R R
21/ 4 51p/ #EtE HEE®E  BAED%)  BAE D %)
Shou Erjun Beneficial owner 6,000,000 1714 4.44
Hong Kong Joint Financial Beneficial owner 5,604,400 15.73 4.08
Investment Ltd
Hong Kong Joint Financial EREBEA
Investment Ltd
Zhao Kaiyuan (Note 1) Interest in a controlled 5,504,400 15.73 4.08
corporation
R (Wzt1) RETEE RS
Notes: Mzt

1.

Mr. Zhao Kaiyuan, the controlling shareholder of Hong Kong
Joint Financial Investment Ltd, is deemed to be interested in
Hong Kong Joint Financial Investment Ltd's interests in the
Company by virtue of the SFO.

HWER%LEAHong Kong Joint Financial
Investment Ltd¥ZERKRE > REZFSHSRPE
BB BRI ER R 2 Hong Kong Joint
Financial Investment LtdFT {58945 /A B) 1 i R #E
Ao
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Purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities

From the date of Listing up to 31 December 2020, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the PRC Company Law, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata
basis to the existing Shareholders.

Audit Committee

The Group's Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and
discussed with the management the internal control and
financial reporting matters. The Audit Committee also
reviewed and confirmed the unaudited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year. The relevant financial
information are prepared under the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

Events after the reporting period

On 4 January 2021, the Company entered into the
processing services agreement with Tianjie General
Machinery for a term of three years. Pursuant to the
agreement, Tianjie General Machinery agreed to provide the
services of processing mechanical parts and semi-finished
products of environmental protection equipment to the
Company. The annual cap for the service fees under the new
processing services agreement will not exceed RMB4.5
million throughout the term thereof.

On 4 January 2021, the Company as seller, entered
into the sale and purchase agreement with Zhejiang
Yuyuan Machinery Technology Co., Limited (“Zhejiang
Yuyuan Machinery”) as purchaser for a term of one year
commencing from 1 January 2021, under which Zhejiang
Yuyuan Machinery agreed to purchase materials such as
metal part and metal processing assembly parts from the
Group. The Group expects the total sales receivables from
Zhejiang Yuyuan Machinery under the agreement to be
capped at approximately RMB500,000.
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On 27 January 2021, the Company entered into the
equipment purchase agreement with Tianjie General
Machinery, pursuant to which the Company has agreed to
acquire equipment from the Tianjie General Machinery at a
total consideration of RMB5,626,252.

Tianjie General Machinery and Zhejiang Yuyuan Machinery
are both wholly-owned subsidiaries of TGL, which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. As such, both
Tianjie New Material and Zhejiang Yuyuan Machinery are
connected persons of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules and the transactions contemplated under
the above-mentioned agreements therewith constitute
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, but are exempt from the circular
(including independent financial advice) and Shareholders’
approval requirements as required under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 4 January 2021 and
27 January 2021.

Major customers and suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and
purchases attributable to the major customers and suppliers
respectively during the year ended 31 December 2020 is as
follows:

RIEBE_—F—RBZ+tH xREEAXZER
WL RBEERS It ZRFREUE
REBAKYES,626,2627 AKX RBEAMKMESR
e

KZFEBEME AL FEE NS AR ABIER
RETGLMN 2B B AR o @it IRk LHiRA
BHOASE > REMME R T FEEmE AR
NENEEAT @A LliREE M RETH
R ZRE L HRAE+UASZE AL A A F BB E
R HERRET EHREFHAZTE
BR (BEBUMBER RRELERT -6
5 E2EARTAREA_S _—F£—HANAH
BR_E-_—F—B_+tHzZRE-

TEXRRMER

EMIBRP RUEERBE S _BEL
B =+ — B L 5 BBt 4 S B4 5 R
AR :

Percentage of the Group's
total revenue

EAREEE RS DL
2020 2019
ZEZE —_B—hNEF
The largest customer RAER 8.59% 12.7%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREREH 34.07% 41.5%

Percentage of the Group's
total purchase

EREERERBE AL
2020 2019
—_E_8F —EB—NF
The largest supplier BRAMIER 6.22% 10.0%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AARMERE 20.87% 23.2%

So far as the Directors are aware, the Directors, their close
associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's total
number of issued shares) do not have any interest in these
major customers and suppliers during the year.
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Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had the following
reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance
with the provisions of the PRC Company Law:

RMB336 million
Sufficiency of public float

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, the Company maintained a sufficient public float as
required under the Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or controlling shareholders of the
Company and their respective close associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) has any interest in a business which
competed or might compete with the business of the Group
or has any other conflict of interest with the Group during
the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETE
UNDERTAKING

Each of Mr. Bian, Mr. Bian Jianguang and Ms. Bian Shu (the
Controlling Shareholders) has confirmed to the Company
that he/she has complied with the non-compete undertaking
given by them to the Company on 20 October 2014. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and enforcement of the non-compete
undertaking and confirmed that all the undertakings
thereunder have been complied with for the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

For the Year, the Company complied with all code provisions
as set out in the CG Code.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF
HOLDERS OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the Company's securities.
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SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the Year, the Company was not engaged in any litigation
or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or
claim of material importance is known to the Directors to be
pending or threatened against the Company.

AUDITOR

The Financial Statements have been audited by Zhonghui
Anda CPA Limited, who shall retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited as auditor of
the Group is to be proposed at the 2020 AGM.

By order of the Board

Bian Yu
Chairman

Zhuji City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, 31 March 2021
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Supervisory Committee Report

B ais

In 2019, the current session of the Supervisory Committee
was established in accordance with the PRC Company
Law and resolutions of 2018 AGM. The current session of
the Supervisory Committee comprises three Supervisors,
namely Mr. Chen Xinhua, Mr. Fu Jun and Mr. Fang Zhiguo.

In the Year, for the Company’s long term interests and
Shareholders’ interests, the Supervisory Committee
acted in strict compliance with relevant laws, regulations,
rules, regulatory documents, the Articles of Association
and Listing Rules and earnestly performed their duties
of supervision as to the acts of the Directors and senior
management of the Company. The main area of work of the
Supervisory Committee in 2020 is summarised as follows:

. MEETING CONDUCTED BY THE
SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee convened three meetings
in the Year.

. WORK OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE

The work of the first session of the Supervisory
Committee mainly comprised the followings:

1. Inspection over implementation of
resolutions of the general meetings

The Supervisory Committee exercised
supervision over and inspection of the
implementation of the resolutions in general
meetings by the Board and the senior
management through observation and
attendance at the Board meetings and general
meetings. The Supervisory Committee is
of the opinion that the Directors and senior
management of the Company have diligently
performed their duties in compliance with
resolutions of the general meetings. No
violation of any laws or regulations or Articles
of Association or any act which jeopardises the
interests of the Company or Shareholders has
been found in the performance of the Company’s
Directors and senior management.
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Supervisory Committee Report
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Inspection over legal compliance of the
Group's operations

The Supervisory Committee exercised
supervision on a regular basis over the legal
compliance and rationality of the Group’ s
operation and management in its ordinary
work. It has also exercised supervision over
work performance of the Board and senior
management. The Supervisory Committee is
of the opinion that the Group's operation is
sound and rational, and is in compliance with
all applicable laws, regulations and rules and
the Articles of Association. The members of the
Board and senior management of the Group have
conscientiously and diligently performed their
duties, and none of their act would prejudice the
interests of the Group or the Shareholders.

Inspection over the Group’s daily
operating activities

The Supervisory Committee exercised
supervision over the Group's operating activities.
The Supervisory Committee is of the opinion
that the Group has maintained a sound internal
control system and made a great progress in the
formulation and implementation of its internal
work procedures, thus effectively controlled its
exposure to various operating risks. The Group's
operation is in compliance with the PRC laws and
regulations and the Articles of Association.

2.
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Inspection over the Group’s financial
condition

The Supervisory Committee reviewed the
Financial Statements, supervised and inspected
the Group's implementation of relevant financial
policies and legislations as well as details
on the Group's assets, financial income and
expenditure. The Supervisory Committee is of
the opinion that the Financial Statements fairly
reflected the Group's financial position and
operating results.

Looking forward, the Supervisory Committee
will continue to carry out its duties in strict
compliance with the Articles of Association and
the relevant laws and regulations and protect the
interests of the Shareholders.

Chen Xinhua
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Zhuji City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, 31 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B N A% B

i

ZHONGHUI

To the shareholders of Zhejiang Tengy Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd

(A joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd (the
Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the Group) set out on pages 87 to 159, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the HKICPA)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (HKSAs) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

(i) Inventories

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements
The Group tested the amount of inventories for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to
our audit because the balance of inventories of
RMB226,636,000 as at 31 December 2020 is material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group’'s impairment test involves application of
judgement and is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group's procedures on ordering
and holding of inventories;

- Evaluating the Group's impairment assessment;
- Assessing the marketability of the inventories;
- Assessing the budget cost of inventories;

- Assessing the ageing of the inventories;

- Assessing the net realisable values of the
inventories; and

- Checking subsequent sales and usage of the
inventories.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for
inventories is supported by the available evidence.
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(ii)

Trade and bills receivables

Refer to Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group tested the amount of trade and bills
receivables for impairment. This impairment test
is significant to our audit because the balance of
trade and bills receivables of RMB791,571,000 as at
31 December 2020 is material to the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, the Group's
impairment test involves application of judgement and
is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group's procedures on granting
credit limits and credit periods to customers;

- Assessing the Group’'s relationship and
transaction history with the customers;

- Evaluating the Group's impairment assessment;
- Assessing ageing of the debts;
- Assessing creditworthiness of the customers;

- Checking subsequent settlements from the
customers;

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group's
exposure to credit risk in the consolidated
financial statements;

(ii)
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- Assessing the competence, independence and
integrity of the external valuer engaged by client;

- Obtaining the external valuation reports and
meeting with the external valuer to discuss and
challenge the valuation process, methodologies
used and market evidence to support significant
judgments and assumptions applied in the
valuation model;

- Checking key assumptions and input data in the
valuation model to supporting evidence; and

- Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation
model.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for
trade and bills receivables is supported by the available
evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are
responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information in the Company's annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’'s report thereon. The other
information is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements is located at the
HKICPA's website at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/
standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Fong Tak Ching

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P06353
Hong Kong, 31 March 2021

EREENE M BRRAENTEINE
—SHAH N B R GSENA G

http://mwww.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/
standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Sy TH A B HLAth i W %%

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—EEF+ A =+—HIFFE

2020 2019
—_E_EF —2—NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B = AR¥T T ARBTT
REVENUE 1§ 7 607,078 726,647
Cost of sales HER A (496,124) (601,333)
Gross profit EH 110,954 125,314
Other income HAa A 8 11,445 11,333
Selling and distribution expenses HE RDIHEMAS (14,017) (20,922)
Administrative expenses THRE% (102,688) (63,455)
Other expenses HihpEx (124) (247)
Profit from operations K HER 5,570 52,023
Finance costs SN 10 (7,066) (6,909)
Share of profits of an associate P E R EEF] 1,999 =
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R 503 45,114
Income tax credit/(expenses) Frigiik e, #x) 11 3,986 (10,825)
PROFIT AND TOTAL TATEE AEWL
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREN K
FORTHEYEAR ATTRIBUTABLETO Z2MEWA4ZE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 12 4,489 34,289
EARNINGS PER SHARE sRERN
Basic and diluted (RMB per share) BEARKNEE (5K
ANEH) 15 0.03 0.25
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

o BRI
At 31 December 2020
S ZEZFFFZA=+—H

At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
W_E_EF RIE-NE
+-H +Z8
Eqr=8 =+—H
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
ik ARETT ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment I EN 16 72,320 77495
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 41,039 43,020
Intangible assets B EE 18 1,046 65
Deferred tax assets RIEREEE 29 56,045 40,147
Deposit paid for intangible asset ENEVEERSE - 1,292
Investment in an associate REERATNERE 19 75,499 =
Pledged deposits BIEHET 25 6,615 4,255
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 252,564 166,274
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories Fea =i 21 226,636 325,135
Trade and bills receivables B RUHERENZE 22 791,571 800,542
Contract assets and contract costs BREERGRME 23 72,889 200,005
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ~ TBTFIE &R EMERTIE 24 29,616 25,558
Investments at fair value through profit ot loss AT (B ABHNEE 20 13,464 1,077
Pledged deposits BHHER 25 9,283 40,782
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE R 25 104,548 39,307
Total current assets RBBEEEE 1,248,007 1,432,406
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEaE
Trade and bills payables BORENTERENER 26 265,819 366,417
Contract liabilities aR&E 23 247,049 233,103
Other payables and accruals HtEATENESER 27 95,358 106,944
Bank loans RITER 28 122,809 126,207
Tax payable FERTRIE 9,532 10,494
Total current liabilities REaEEE 740,567 843,165
NET CURRENT ASSETS TEBEFE 507,440 589,241
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEQRERTBERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 760,004 755,515
Net assets BETE 760,004 755,515
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

wr o MBS
At 31 December 2020
KZEZFF+A=+—H

At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
RZBZEE Ny i3
+=A +ZA
=+—-H ==E
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
ik ARETT ARET T

Capital and reserves BXRftE
Share capital AR 30 135,000 135,000
Share premium BHRE 239,064 239,064
Reserves G 31 (a) 385,940 381,451
Total equity B 760,004 755,515

The consolidated financial statements on pages 87 to 159 $87HEFI1L9BMMEMNGESMBRREN

were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 31 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Bian Yu

=F

T —F-RA-T—HEEFEHEREET
EoWAHTIIEEAREE !

Bian Weican
BEIE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE-F-—THE+-F=+—HIFE 1

At 1 January 2019 RZZ-hE—F—H 135,000 239,064 38,538 6,861 301,763 721,226
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZEBALE - - - = 34,289 34,289
Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve BT ETERGEE - - 3815 - (3,815) =
Appropriation to safety production reserve ARER2LERE - - - 395 (395) s
At 31 December 2019 RIB-AE+ZA=+—H 135,000 239,064 42,353 7256 331,842 755,515
At 1 January 2020 RIZZZEE—HF—H 135,000 239,064 42,353 7256 331,842 755,515
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZENALE - - - = 4,489 4,489
Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve BT EERGEE - - 368 - (368) =
At 31 December 2020 RZE"EF+-A=+—H 135,000 239,064 42,721 7256 335,963 760,004

3 These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of — * ZERBREEGAVBRARANGEHEARTE
RMB385,940,000 (2019: RMB381,451,000) in the consolidated 385,940,0007T (ZZ—H.F | AR#381,451,0007T) °
statements of financial position.




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE A H=F—HIFFE

2020 2019
ZECIEHE “E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREBTT
Cash flows from operating activities RETEHRERE
Profit before tax inysibiagll 503 45,114
Adjustments for: MU TRIEHE
Finance costs FE R A 7,066 6,909
Interest income FEWA (990) (713)
Foreign exchange difference, net INBE A BB R 783 (285)
Depreciation on property, ME- -BENREEITE
plant and equipment 5,761 5,224
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHE 311 128
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEERE 1,981 1,981
Changes in investments at fair value BATEFAERD
through profit or loss KEZH) 2,845 78
Share of profits of an associate FE(L B E A BT (1,999) =
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5 EWEIERERE 42,075 18,803
Impairment loss on contract asset AREBEERERBRE 3,696 4,950
Impairment loss/(reversal of FEW Z 4R ERE,
impairment loss) on bills receivables CRi{E 1B #[0]) 770 (2,345)
Impairment loss on other receivables H W IR R EE R 1,263 403
Operating cash flows before working EEESEIHFINLE
capital changes HERE 64,065 80,247
Change in inventories GFEEH 98,499 (855)
Change in trade and bills receivables B 5 I K FE IR
RipgH 46,825 (163,419)
Change in prepayment, deposits and FEBRIE e R EAM
other receivables FEWFRIE & (5,399) 19,810
Change in trade and bills payables B2 RIE R EN
RipgH (100,598) 3,080
Change in contract assets EREEED 42,721 56,073
Change in contract liabilities sRaEEH 13,946 30,819
Change in other payables and accruals HM T RIE R EST
BEREE) (11,586) (1,241)
Cash generated from operations REEBFRESRSE 148,473 24,514
Interest received BUFIE 990 713
Interest paid BT (7,066) (6,909)
Tax paid BIRIE (12,874) (6,847)
Net cash generated from KEEHFREE
operating activities NS FEE 129,523 11,471
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2 I Nyl = R
S TR e
For the year ended 31 December 2020
R —E = —HILEE

2020 2019
ZEIEEF “E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFTT AREBTT
Cash flows from investing activities REFTHRERE
Acquisition of an associate KB E A ) (73,500) =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB B E K&k H (692) (1,100)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME -BERLZE
plant and equipment Frig=R1E 106 10
Change in pledged deposits BIRREREE) 29,139 (3,843)
Net cash used in investing activities KREEHFRA
REFER (44,947) (4,933)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEERERE
New short-term bank loans raised LR ERIRTTE R 161,500 276,140
Repayment of bank loans BIRIRTTEMR (180,052) (260,088)
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEEE FrA)
financing activities FRELIRE B (18,552) 16,052
Net increase in cash and RERIAEEEWIEM
cash equivalents BEE 66,024 22,590
Cash and cash equivalents at FVIRERIREEEY
beginning of year 39,307 16,432
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEB) R &35
changes, net (783) 285
Cash and cash equivalents FRRERAEEEY
at end of year 104,548 39,307
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEBEYDH
Bank and cash balances RITRIREAAE 104,548 39,307
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd
(the” Company”) was incorporated in the People's
Republic of China (the” PRC") as a joint stock
company with limited liability. The address of its
registered office is TENGY Industrial Park, Paitou
Town, Zhuji City, Zhejiang Province, PRC. The
Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) were principally engaged in design,
development, manufacturing, installation and sale of
environmental pollution prevention equipment and
electronic products. The principal activities of the
Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
" Directors”), Tengy Group Limited, a company
incorporated in the PRC, is the holding company.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") that
are relevant to its operations and effective for its
accounting year beginning on 1 January 2020.
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption
of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in
significant changes to the Group's accounting policies,
presentation of the Group's financial statements and
amounts reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective. The application of these new HKFRSs will
not have material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs, issued by the
HKICPA and the applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the investments at fair value through profit
or loss and derivative instruments which are carried at
their fair values/fair values less costs to sell.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
key assumptions and estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgments in the process
of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving
critical judgments and areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to these consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are
entities over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.
activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights
held by other parties, to determine whether it has
control. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that
right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that subsidiary and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

FEGHBR &

=ERE @

EEIERIER  AEEEERHEEER
ERUREMALRHAENBERERE XU
EEHERRHAENE -EEFAARER
BROEBEREENBELT 85 EH
FEF] o

MEARNKRERREENEEEAEEE
HEGSAKR EEEZEGEELEZAESR
BiRE AR

HEN B AR MERKAEREHNFE N
BEDENHEABRATEERNZMB
REEAREBRE QAT EAG)RAEEG
ZWMBAREEFEERRAZNBATAE
BBV A ER T A B LU (R AR R R 5t SN
hEREMEBEE

ERRARBBOIRS SRR ARG
FUHE -FERZRECHEEELR
BERRE  REFERIFTLUEHE M
BABDNEFHRELERGEHBN
DURE (R SR A SR B P SR BY BUR — 2 o

Annual Report 2020 4§} 95



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e B IR B Gk

For the year ended 31 December 2020

3.

96

s
o —

BrER _EEF A= —HILFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi, which
is the Company's functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair
values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company's presentation currency are
translated into the Company's presentation
currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated
at the exchange rates on the transaction
dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of an entity but is not control or joint
control over those policies. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible, including potential voting rights held
by other entities, are considered when assessing
whether the Group has significant influence. In
assessing whether a potential voting right contributes
to significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not
considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity
method and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable
assets and liabilities of the associate in an acquisition
are measured at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the associate's
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as
goodwill. The goodwill is included in the carrying
amount of the investment and is tested for impairment
together with the investment at the end of each
reporting period when there is objective evidence that
the investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

The Group's share of an associate’'s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss, and its share of the post-acquisition movements
in reserves is recognised in the consolidated
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group's share of losses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate. If the associate subsequently reports
profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits equals
the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that
results in a loss of significant influence represents
the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that associate and (ii) the
Group's share of the net assets of that associate plus
any remaining goodwill relating to that associate and
any related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve. If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture, the Group continues to
apply the equity method and does not remeasure the
retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interests in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are recognised in profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Buildings 4.75%
Plant and machinery 9.50%
Office equipment 19%-31.67%
Motor vehicles 23.75%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and machinery pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets
are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses.

Patents and computer software are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 10 years and 3 years
respectively.

Leases
The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased assets
are available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets
is calculated at rates to write off their cost over the
shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Land use rights 2% - 3.33%
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liabilities, lease payments prepaid, initial direct costs
and the restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the lease payments discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that
rate can be determined, or otherwise the Group's
incremental borrowing rate. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expenses
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Short-term leases are leases with an initial
lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets are
assets of value below US$5,000.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average basis. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of all production
overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire; the Group transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has
not retained control on the assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’'s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery
of the asset within the timeframe established by
the market concerned, and are initially recognised at
fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs
except in the case of investments at fair value through
profit or loss. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of investments at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the
following category:

(1)

(i)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other
receivables) are classified under this category if
they satisfy both of the following conditions:

(@) the assets are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

(b)  the contractual terms of the assets give
rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less loss
allowance for expected credit losses.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified under this
category if they do not meet the conditions
to be measured at amortised cost and the
conditions of debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income unless the
Group designates an equity investment that is
not held for trading as at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently measured at fair value with any
gains or losses arising from changes in fair values
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss are net of any
interest income and dividend income. Interest
income and dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses on financial assets at amortised cost
and contract assets. Expected credit losses are the
weighted average of credit losses with the respective
risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument
at an amount equal to the expected credit losses
that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime
expected credit losses”) for trade receivables and
contract assets, or if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk
on a financial instrument (other than trade receivables
and contract assets) has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount
equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses
that represents the expected credit losses that result
from default events on that financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to
adjust the loss allowance at the end of the reporting
period to the required amount is recognised in profit or
loss as an impairment gain or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives (including contingent considerations under
business combinations) are initially recognised and
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or
losses arising from changes in fair values recognised in
profit or loss.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer with reference
to the customary business practices and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. For a
contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised
product or service exceeds one year, the consideration
is adjusted for the effect of a significant financing
component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the
terms of a contract and the laws that apply to that
contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied
over time or at a point in time. A performance
obligation is satisfied over time if:
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHR @

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers EEaREWE @)

(Continued)

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and (a) EXPFPRARNENRHEBXREBEREDN
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's Friet MMz 5
performance;

(b)  the Group's performance creates or enhances an b) EXEENEBEANTABIRINE—
asset that the customer controls as the asset is BEHRKA BRI RESZE P EH
created or enhanced:; or NEE ; I

(c) the Group's performance does not create an ) EXxEENENTALEAE—IE
asset with an alternative use to the Group and HAEREERAGNEE REE
the Group has an enforceable right to payment BEHESEERNENTAERD
for performance completed to date. 58 I FA T FRBY AR 0

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, HEANEETBRERERR Wagikas

revenue is recognised by reference to the progress ERNENEENEERR - FH WE

towards complete satisfaction of that performance REFESE R ARG RS o

obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point
in time when the customer obtains control of the
product or service.

Other income H A

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion F) B WA E BB PR F =L 1% B 15 B 5 hE

basis using the effective interest method. o
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the at the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged in profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs and
involves the payment of termination benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally
and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other
than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused
tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’'s most senior executive
management for the purpose of allocating resources
and assessing the performance of the Group's various
lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of productions processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Company or of a parent of
the Company.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(viii)

The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.
If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Company or to a parent of the Company.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets other than deferred tax assets, investments,
inventories and receivables, to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of
the reporting period or those that indicate the going
concern assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.
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4.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is
made based on the ageing and estimated net
realisable value of inventories. The assessment
of the allowance amount involves judgement
and estimates. Where the actual outcome in
future is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and allowance charge/write-back
in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and
doubtful debts based on assessments of the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each debtor.
Impairments arise where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of
bad and doubtful debts requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the actual
result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the
trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate has
been changed.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of
future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies. Further details are
contained in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

4,

AR 7 En R E E (&5t @

S FRERZRNEEZRE @

(a)

(b)

(c)
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P E A S

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE T ZF+_/F=-+—HIFE

4.

118

==

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation
charges for the Group's property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The
Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are different to
those previously estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Additional depreciation is made if the estimated
useful lives and/or the residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment are different from
the previous estimation. Useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each financial year end
date based on changes in circumstances.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.

4,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

#HE

S A=A — AL

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of
the Group entities. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets
and liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. Receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis. For
transactions that are not denominated in the
functional currency of the relevant operating unit,
the Group does not offer credit terms without
the specific approval of the executive directors.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial
assets, which comprise cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, and other
receivables, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised
and creditworthy third parties, there is no
requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by analysis by
customer/counterparty. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group
as the customer bases of the Group's trade
receivables are widely dispersed.

5.

MBRERE

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o 5 ER B Gk
For the year ended 31 December 2020
R —E = —HILEE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

120

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and bills receivables and prepayments, deposits
and other receivables are disclosed in notes 22
and 24, respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group considers whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of financial
assets on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period by comparing the risk of
a default occurring as at the reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable
and supportive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following information is used:

internal credit rating;

- actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the borrower’s ability
to meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the borrower;

- significant changes in the value of the
collateral or in the quality of guarantees or
credit enhancements; and

- significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the
borrower, including changes in the payment
status of borrowers.

5.

HHEEREIE &
(b) EERE ©®
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—

S A=A — AL

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

The Group uses two categories for non-trade
receivables which reflect their credit risk and
how the loan loss provision is determined
for each of the categories. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers
historical loss rates for each category and adjusts
for forward looking data.

5.

B 75 [ B

(b)

EI18 =

EERE @

FEERIFEZMHENBBRED
%ﬁif@iﬁiﬁ%lj MREEE R E
BRI BB REHEN A 1R
%Z%EHHTDTTF‘HE o AEBEEES
85 B FE SE S R X K Al BE BURE

TREE o

Category Definition Loss provision

85 Bs BERE

Performing Low risk of default and 12 month expected losses
strong capacity to pay

EE EAREE B MRREE 58 1218 B T 8Ak5 18

Non-performing

R EERARARBIEM

Significant increase in credit risk

Lifetime expected losses

FHITAHEIR

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term. All of the Group's financial liabilities
are due within one year.

(c)

REE T AR

K%@E’Jﬂ%%iﬁﬁﬁﬂ“fﬁ*ﬁ&%
HARHET B R BAREERFTRIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
R —E = —HILEE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. E#FRERERE @

(Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) FBEZRAME @
The maturity analysis of the Group's financial AEFSHEENISHESROT :

liabilities is as follows:

Total
contractual
Carrying  undiscounted
amounts cash flow
BHRBEIR
IREfE HRERESHRE
Less than
Total 1 year
&aE DME
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
31 December 2020 “BE2Z2F+ZA=+—H
Trade and bills payables BoENTIERENER 265,819 265,819
Other payables and accruals HMEARIBEKRE &R 95,358 95,358
Bank loans RITEW 122,809 128,469
483,986 489,646
31 December 2019 2 NEF+ZB=+—H
Trade and bills payables BoEMRIERENER 366,417 366,417
Other payables and accruals HMENHIBEKRESE R 106,944 106,944
Bank loans RITEMN 126,207 131,305
599,568 604,666
(d) Interest rate risk (d) FZER
The Group's bank deposits and bank borrowings REENIRITERKIRITERRE
bear interests at fixed interest rates and EFEFE RIEAZSATFENER
therefore are subject to fair value interest rate 5 o
risks.
(e) Fair values (e) ~FE
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial AEBRGEMBERRERRENE
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in MEErRTHEBERAEEARZR
the consolidated statement of financial position HAFEESE

approximate their respective fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T FFAf = —HIFFEE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. B#FRRERE @

(Continued)
(f) Financial instruments by category (f) FHEHESHNERIA
The carrying amounts of each of the category of AEEZRIEMTARREHAR
the Group's financial instruments at the end of FEREEWT ¢
the reporting period are as follows:
2020 2019
ZEZF% “B2—hE
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBEFT
Financial assets EREE
Investments at fair value through  32AF{ET ABZH
profit or loss (mandatorily BE GaflstE)
measured) 13,464 1,077
Financial assets at amortised HEIER AT ENER
cost (including cash and cash BE (BERER
equivalents) REHEY) 933,051 908,177
Financial liabilities THAaE
Financial liabilities R H A St B
at amortised cost By =N 483,986 599,568
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE - EEFf /A= —HIFFE

6. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS 6. AT(EEE
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell NEEERSTEHEMIZSEE Z BET
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly NERRS T SLHEESEFTEN D 82
transaction between market participants at the BEAXNZEBR EUTAFESZER
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair EFERATERSRT BRtE2RFE
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that HEERMTBARBERE DA =ZEER

categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in F—RWARE . AEETRFT=2HH
active markets for identical NEZHBEERE
assets or liabilities that the BRERMIZEZRE
Group can access at the (REHEE)

measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted FRMWMATE . RE—REBEZHRE
prices included within level ShoBEHEETE
1 that are observable for the B EERE & A
asset or liability, either directly Bk
or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the FEoRMARE . BENBEZFATE
asset or liability. =g A B o

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and ﬁ%ﬂ@ﬁ%%ﬁ@%ﬁ?’*ijﬁﬁ;ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ

transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date SIENEREH BREB @K NT

of the event or change in circumstances that caused A—EERNEAREL -

the transfer.




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE S -FTHEL A+ HLEE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31

6. AFEE=ZE @

(a MIBE_ZFEFE+_A=+—HzZA

December 2020: TEERIEE
Fair value measurements using: Total
FERAUTHRAREZ ATENE ! st
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020
Bt F—# B F=Hh “T°Ef
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
Recurring fair value REMNTESE .
measurements:
Investments at fair value through AT Est ABZIKE
profit or loss
Derivatives - Ferrous metal TE-BELBHEEN
future contract 13,464 - - 13,464

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31

RIB—NE+ZA=+—RBZAFEE

December 2019: AR EE
Fair value measurements using: Total
FANTRARBZ ATEFE ! 1t
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019
Bt E—# - £z —T-NE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
Recurring fair value REMNTESE .
measurements:
Investments at fair value through 3@ AT B ABZNERE
profit or loss
Derivatives - Ferrous metal E-BBsBHEEN
future contract 1,077 - - 1,077
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 4 ‘..
BE —E_FTFf _H=f—HIFFE

7. REVENUE 7. W=
The Group's revenue represents sales of environmental AEBNKRAIEAFELZRERIFEEIRERS
protection equipment for installation and sales of R ARERETERNIRRIHHE ;
environmental pollution prevention equipment and HEMMNNZEGBEMIRHERENE
electronic products; the invoiced value of materials sold Bo

and the value of services rendered during the Year.

2020
—ETEHF
RMB’000
ARETFT
Revenue &
Sales of environmental protection HERRRME
equipment 580,530 696,284
Sales of materials tHEMK 25,491 10,596
Rendering of services R 1,057 19,767
607,078 726,647




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o W B R B

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE T EF A=+ —HIFFE
7. REVENUE (continued) 7 W= @
Disaggregation of revenue from sales of DIFHERFRREURE ©
environmental protection equipment:
2020 2019
—EZFE —Z2—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AR®ETF T
Geographical markets & T 35
Mainland China R g 3t 564,537 672,454
Other countries HhE=x 15,993 23,830
Total “Ect 580,530 696,284
Major products FEER
Electrostatic precipitator B EEPREEZS 271,097 458,886
Electrostatic-bag composite precipitator FE‘J‘@AHE%% 53,077 78,916
Bag filter precipitator KA PREEZR 52,038 101,844
S0O2 and NOx emission reduction B ZEEmRaEEY
(desulfurisation and denitrification B (R IR HEEE)
devices) 165,554 53,157
Others (e.g. Pneumatic ash conveying  Hfth (W& 18K 2 47%)
system) 38,764 3,481
Total st 580,530 696,284
Timing of revenue recognition I 2 T SR B BRF R
At a point in time R,
- Sales of Environmental protection —HERFRE
equipment 580,530 696,284
— Sale of materials —tHEME 25,491 10,596
— Rendering of services — MRS 1,057 19,767
Total “Ect 607,078 726,647

Annual Report 2020 4§} 127



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o 5 ER B Gk
For the year ended 31 December 2020
R —E = —HILEE

7

128

REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from sales of
environmental protection equipment:
(Continued)

Sales of Environmental protection equipment

The Group manufactures, sells and installs environmental
pollution prevention equipment to the customers.
The customers pay the contract prices to the Group
according to the payment schedules as stipulated in
the contracts within one month. Sales are recognised
when control of the products and services have
transferred, being when the products are delivered
to a customer. If the service rendered by the Group
exceeds the payments, a contract asset is recognised.
If the payments exceed the service rendered, a
contract liability is recognised.

If a contract includes the installation of hardware,
revenue for the hardware is recognised at a point in
time when the hardware is delivered, the legal title has
passed and the customer has accepted the hardware.

The contract price is allocated to the performance
obligations based on the relative stand-alone selling
prices of the performance obligations. The stand-alone
selling prices are determined by applying the expected
cost plus a margin approach.

Sales of materials

The Group sells the materials to the customers. The
products amount is repayable within one month. Sales
are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to
a customer, there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer’s acceptance of the products and
the customer has obtained legal titles to the products.

A receivable is recognised when the products are
delivered to the customers as this is the point in time
that the consideration is unconditional because only
the passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

UREs @)
DIFHEIRRRENREGE : @

HEIRIRR

FERUNERATRHERZREIRRSR
AR - & P IRE SRR RERE
ZR—ERRNAEERZNERER-E
E KRR RSB R B E MmN
TERAE ENEE - HAEEIEMHD
RBBHAR KERIBERAEE W
B FTRMHRIARTS  RIE SR AR

i SR EEREREMS BRI
RYZFKEEEFMAEREEBBURERE
FENBE (2 B FEST ©

BREREBENESENEMBILIEE DA
ERNER-BUESELERERRAND
FEBEEEE -

HE#

AEEORFHEME - ERTRAR—
BRAREE -FEMNZEREDEE BIE
MR FERZE) BB EFERR
BRERNRBTEEREFEENER
B EPRA R > FEERINE -

EERMRXNTEREZ LB —2IRS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE S -FTHEL A+ HLEE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. HithlkA
2020 2019
=% “B-hNEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AR®ETF T
Bank interest income IRITH B UA 990 713
Government grants AT fE BN 9,663 7796
Reversal of impairment loss on FEW ZE IR R (B B8 #E (0]
bills receivables - 2,345
Gain on disposal of investments at fair  HEZ AT EST ABTHEN
value through profit or loss KEZ WG 696 35
Foreign exchange gain & W - 285
Others Hith 96 159
11,445 11,333
9. SEGMENT INFORMATION 9. HEFEH
The Group's revenue during the Year was mainly REBRAFEEN NG EER B TE MY
derived from sale of environmental protection ERRSEFARERETFEMNIRERE
equipment contract revenue for installation and sale BIHEAONE ; HESRNEEEER
of environmental pollution prevention equipment and FIiR BN EE AEEEREEBNE
electronic products; the invoiced value of good sold B R TSR ML Fitt» XEBES —
and the value of services rendered. The products of (EESar=i
the Group are subject to similar risks and returns and,
therefore, the Group has only one business segment.
Geographical information E&E M
Revenue Non-current assets
Wzs ERBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019

—7—7E :g_ﬂﬁ —7—7E :’g_jlg
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR | ARETT

Mainland China HEIR 591,085 702,817 252,564 166,274

Other countries HtExR 15,993 23,830 = =

Consolidated total InauaEs 607,078 726,647 252,564 166,274
In presenting the geographical information, revenue is 27 tE ERR WmHIRER P
based on the locations of the customers. IEEEEZ.J\O
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
R —E = —HILEE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. AHWEM @
Geographical information (Continued) MEEE @
Revenue from major customers: REETEFLBWE :
2020 2019
—EBETHE —Z2—NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥TIT
Customer A EEA N/A*
RiER* 92,881
Customer B EFB N/A*
RiER* 72,975
e Customer did not contribute more than 10% of the total e BRI EEMAEEAAFESGAWEHLE
consolidated revenue of the Group for the year. 10% U Lo
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. FLE K2
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEMANSTUT !
2020 2019
—EEF “E—NEF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T
Interest on bank loans RITEMHFE 7,066 6,909
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

1.

BE—EEF+ A =+—HIFFE

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSES

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC and the respective regulations, the Company and
its subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China are
subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 25% on
the taxable income.

The income tax (credit)/expense of the Group is
analysed as follows:

1. FR{SIE (E%) FX

BRBEPBEEXEFAERERBRAER &2
BIREFETREAMMEENNE AR AR
25% I MEBFERMUABMEEFRE
7 o

AEBOFTER GE%) B OIINT

2020 2019

=¥ —E—hE

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR#FT AEH#FTT

PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the year ERHE SR 11,912 17085

Deferred tax (note 29) IEIEFR 1A (MI5E29) (15,898) (6,260)
Income tax (credit)/expenses KEEFTER

for the year (&%) B (3,986) 10,825

No provision for Hong Kong profit tax was required
since the Group has no associate profit in Hong Kong
for the years presented.

A reconciliation of the tax (credit)/expense applicable
to profit before tax at the statutory rate to the tax
(credit)/expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

HRAEER2IFETENREBELRE
RREH WBARBE B ERIFLERF-

BEEMXSHEBRR KA @B
B (ER) HAXEZERREAENR
B (%) FXBHERNT

2020 2019
ZEITHE “B2—hE
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥%TT ARBEFT
Profit before tax A 503 45,114
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% A TERE2% T EB
| 126 11,279
Additional deduction on research and B 25 R 2 RB MO
development expenses (3,213) (605)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ~ AEIHIBB TR I E 518 737
Tax effect of non-taxable income BENRWANREZE (1,417) (586)
Income tax (credit)/expenses KEEFTER
for the year (8% Hx (3,986) 10,825
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
R —E = —HILEE

12. PROFIT FORTHE YEAR 12. EAW@F
The Group's profit for the year is stated after charging/ REBBMERREFLINR GIA) LTS
(crediting) the following: IBEERR .
2020 2019
—E=E “B-hNEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®BTFT
Auditor’s remuneration Z B AN & 1,055 1,055
Cost of inventories sold FRELREFENMZE 496,124 601,333
Depreciation e 5,761 5,224
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEEINE 1,981 1,981
Amortisation of intangible assets B E 31 128
Impairment loss on trade receivables B S EWRIE R ERE 42,075 18,803
Impairment loss/(reversal of R EREE R ERE
impairment loss) recognised on bills (R E k518 ()
receivables 770 (2,345)
Impairment loss on other receivables HihfEWEIBR(ERIE 1,263 403
Impairment loss on contract asset SHNEERERE 3,696 4,950
Changes in investments at fair value BAFEFABREN
through profit or loss KEEE) 2,845 78
Research and development expenditure  Hff2EF 2 23,256 2,186
Staff costs (including directors’ ETA (BIFES
remuneration — note 13): B <& —F5E13) -
Wages and Salaries IT&EMH® 45,710 47650
Retirement benefits BARSEIHR
scheme contribution 339 3,076
Staff welfare expenses BTREMEAX 5,470 6,144
51,519 56,870

132  Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd {#Hi{L RIEERBERHE G 7 B /A H]




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wR e 5 AR Bk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE —E FFf A= —HIFFEE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. EE R T 4ARESHIMA TS
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of each Director were as follows: ZEENEWT
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits contributions Total
FER RIFER
ik HAt4@7) HE[EER st

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
E ARBFr AREFR ARBFRn ARET=

Executive Directors HITESE

Bian Yu BF - 450 62 512
Bian Weican BEIZ - 188 32 220
Bian Shu Bk - 295 64 359

Non-Executive Directors JEH{TES

Bian Jianguang BEN - 150 - 150
Zhang Yuanyuan ERE - - - -
Chen Jiancheng [ y=7 - 60 - 60
Zhu Xianbo RER 3 - 128 - 128
Independent Non- BiERITES

Executive Directors
Zhang Bing &I - 30 - 30
Feng Juji SR - VAl - m
Li Jiannan BEE - 50 - 50
Supervisors Ex
Chen Xinhua BRATEE - 148 27 175
Fu Jun (35 - 60 = 60
Fang Zhiguo 7 aE - 60 - 60
Chief executive BHRITHAE
Qiu Jinxin il - 312 30 342

Total for the year ended HE_T_Z4&
31 December 2020 +-ZB=+—H
I FELEE - 2,102 215 2,317
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_FE_FF_F=F—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

134

13. EERABRESHMALEE

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued) F=1
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits  contributions Total
ek RIRER]
ik HAt1@# STEIERR st
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
s AREFTT ARBTT ARETT ARET®T
Executive Directors HWITESR
Bian Yu BT - 515 27 542
Bian Weican BRE - 260 27 287
Bian Shu Bk - 357 27 384
Non-Executive Directors FEHITEE
Bian Jianguang BEN - 150 = 150
Zhang Yuanyuan ERE - 110 = 10
Chen Jiancheng [ y=7 - 60 - 60
Zhu Xianbo RER - 91 - 91
Independent Non- BiERITES
Executive Directors
Zhang Bing SRR - 60 - 60
Feng Juiji oot B! - 168 - 168
Li Jiannan Bz - 60 - 60
Supervisors S
Chen Xinhua BRATEE - 177 13 190
Fu Jun (35 - 60 - 60
Fang Zhiguo 7 aE - 60 - 60
Chief executive BHRITHAR
Qiu Jinxin il - 348 13 361
Total for the year ended HZE_Z—NE
31 December 2019 +=ZR=+—"H
B - 2,476 107 2,583
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE S -FTHEL A+ HLEE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. ESKhA% R
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (%)

= A TN =

rEE RLBSHHESTaE_28
ERSERTHAE CE—HE: —LBES
REBBITHAL) » HFMEERR XS
BlokER BB =% (CE—NE: —£)

The five highest paid employees during the year
included two Directors and the chief executive (2019:
two Directors and the chief executive), details of
whose remuneration are set out in information above.

Details of the remuneration of the remaining two FEERETNESNFMEBWT
(2019: two) non-directors, highest paid employees for
the Year are as follows:
2020 2019
—TEF “E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFTT ARETIT
Salaries and other benefits e REMEF 721 650
Retirement benefits scheme BIRBHET 2R
contributions 65 25
786 675

#HMAF NI EERNNSFEERSHME
ERNHEWT:

The number of non-directors, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is
as follows:

Number of employees

FH=E4E]
2020 2019
—EZZ® “E—NF
Emolument band: [
HK$nil - HK$1,000,000 THEITZE,000,0005E 75 2 2

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and REEZZZEFRZZTE—NLFE+TIA

2019, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals, and directors, as an
inducement to join the Group or as compensation for
loss of office other than those disclosed above. In
addition, during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019, no directors waived any emoluments.

=+—HLEFE BREXPAKEEIN £
EESEDLRRSFMATRESSZMY
ERIBE > (FRIEEEMATER R
WIERHBERAVAEE IS REBEZS
TEERTE-AE+TA=+—HLE
B BEEEREEMUME-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE - EEFf /A= —HIFFE

14.

15.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the profit
for the year of approximately RMB4,489,000 (2019:
RMB34,289,000) attributable to owners of the
Company and the weighted average number of
135,000,000 (2019: 135,000,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

No diluted earnings per share is presented as the
Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
shares during the two years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.

14.

15.

:25)

=+— EIJJ:EFF/)WTEHH E‘ - jl
FIE) -

sikEF)
BREXERF

ANBEBANELERELRRHTLZ
ANBBEBABEHEAEEZMNOAR
#4,489,000C (ZE—HF : AR
34,289,0007T) MAFEEEHTZERMY
H0H#E T ¥98135,000,00008 (ZZ— N F :
135,000,0000%) 5+& -

SRBERF

BE_ZT_ZFR-T-NAF+ZA
=+—HIEMEFE ARAATLEE
PABTHENENSER $REE
REERF -
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wR e 5 AR Bk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T T = —HIFEE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. 1% -BEKRRE

Plant and Motor Office
Buildings machinery vehicles equipment Total
¥ BERRE AE WAZRE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ANEETT ARETR ARBTL ARETT
Cost B
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-F—H 91,077 31,209 1,067 1720 125,073
Additions HE - 1,008 - 9% 1,100
Transfers E - - (204) = (204)
At 31 December 2019 and RIE-NE+ZA=1-H
1 January 2020 RZ2Z%2%-F-H 91,077 32,214 863 1815 125,969
Additions HE - 169 460 63 692
Disposals HE - - (132) = (132)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEE+ZB=1+-H 91,077 32,383 1,191 1,878 126,529
Accumulated depreciationand ~ EsHTERE(E
impairment
At 1 January 2019 RIE-—hE-F-H 25,752 15,444 1,003 1,245 43,444
Charge for the year REESH 3,483 1470 3 268 5,224
Disposals HE - - (194) - (194)
At 31 December 2019 and RIE-NE+ZA=1+-H
1 January 2020 RZEZZE-F-H 29,235 16,914 812 1513 48474
Charge for the year rEETH 3483 2,011 B4 213 5,761
Disposals HE - - (26) = (26)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZF+-F=+-H 32,118 18,925 840 1,726 54,209
Carrying amount REfE
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEF+°A=+-H 58,359 13,458 351 152 72,320
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=+-H 61,842 15,300 51 302 77495

As at 31 December 2020, certain of the Group's
buildings with a carrying amount of approximately
RMB7972,000 (2019: RMB9,594,000) were pledged
to secure bank loan facilities granted to the Group
(note 28).

RNZE_ZEF+_HA=+—H>Kx&EH
IRmMEHEBENA ARE7972,0007T (ZF
—NF . AR%E9,594,0007T) BIE TIEF
EEH UMAERERNIBTERMRE
TRHIEIR (f95E28) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
R —E = —HILEE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. EREESE
Disclosures of lease-related items: M EHEANEBRE
2020 2019
—ETHE —Z2—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TT ARHETT
At 31 December: BW+_B=+—QH":
Right-of-use assets FREEE
— Land use rights — TR 41,039 43,020
2020 2019
—E°EF “E—NEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR T AEH#FTT
Year ended 31 December: BHE+-B=+—H
IEFE
Depreciation charge of FREEEINEMRY
right-of-use assets
— Land use rights — T AR 1,981 1,981
As at 31 December 2020, the Group's land use rights RIZEZIEF+THA=+—8B > F&£EK
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB13,966,000 E{E#%E A AR1513,966,0007T (ZE—H
(2019: RMB15,200,000) were pledged to secure bank £ AR #15,200,00070) W EREE
loan facilities granted to the Group (note 28). BE > UMAEREENIRTERRER

g (f¥5E28) o

138  Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd {#Hi{L RIEERBIRHE G 7 B /A H]




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o W B R B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE —E FFf A= —HIFFEE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BB E
Patent Software Total
=7 o st
Cost D% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETR
At 1 January 2019, ﬁ’\ig NFE—B—H-

31 December 2019 and —hE+ZB=+—8k
1 January 2020 _v_vi A—AH 110 670 780
Addition NE = 1,292 1,292
31 December 2020 :§:§$+:ﬁ =+—H 110 1,962 2,072

Accumulated amortisation and R sHi#iH &R (EEE
impairment loss

At 1 January 2019 RIZZ2—hF—F—H 75 512 587
Amortisation for the year REEHH 11 117 128
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-AFE+_B=1+—8x
1 January 2020 . = 86 629 715
Amortisation for the year R EHH 11 300 31
At 31 December 2020 RIEZZEF+°-HA=+—H 97 929 1,026
Carrying amount IREME
At 31 December 2020 RIEZZEF+ZHA=+—H 13 1,033 1,046
At 31 December 2019 RIZ—hF+ZR=+—H 24 41 65
19. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE 19. RBERXTZRE
2020
—EEF
RMB’000
AR®T T
Unlisted investments: FELERKE
Share of net assets EIEEEFRE 69,988
Goodwill BmE 5,511
75,499

Annual Report 2020 4§} 139



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e B IR B Gk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
R —E = —HILEE

19. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE (Continvea)  19. REHE AT 2188 &

The following table shows information of associate TRINHAERAEENHERAZE
that is material to the Group. The associate is BloZBE AR DRBRE AN GEGTH
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements WRARFIZ2FHBFERBMELERZ
using the equity method. The summarised financial BEANBNE B BREENMFIRERR
information presented is based on the HKFRS financial Blo

statements of the associate.

Name Inner Mongolia Guodian Hejie
Wind Energy Co., Limited

s AR GHEEMRREBRAT
2020

—EBTERF

Principal place of business/country of incorporation PRC
TEEEMB FEMAIIER FRE
Principal activity Construction and operation of

wind farms, provision of operation
maintenance and consultancy
services for wind farms in the PRC

FEEK RHEEENEERES ARE
B IE A KRR ARTS
% of ownership interests 49%
BEEEA DL 49%
RMB’000
AR®BFT
As 31 December: W+ZB=1+—8":
Non-current assets ERENEE 269,702
Current assets TMENEE 85,685
Non-current liabilities EREBERE (212,554)
Current liabilities mEIEE -
Net asset BETE 142,833
Group's share of net asset rEEFELEEFE 69,988
Goodwill &k 5,511
Group's share of carrying amount of interests REEELERREE 75,499
Year ended 31 December; BE+_A=+—HILEE:
Revenue W = 17,385
Profit from continuing operations FREKE XIS R 4,081
Other comprehensive income Hittzmiam -
Total comprehensive income 2 HE W AREE 4,081
Dividends received from associates BWBEATRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE —E FFf A= —HIFFEE

19. REEATIZIRE @
NELEENZALESRAT A AEE—

BERKRE PR HEHBIEBRMBEGH
ik T2RRE-

19. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

NEEHEEMZREERALE is a strategic
investment of the Group, providing access to new
technology and processes for its power business.

As at 31 December 2020, the bank and cash balances NZEZEF+ZA=+—H > ~&£EW
of the Group' associates in the PRC denominated FEBEABDUARE TARE)) HESN
in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to RMB8,430,000. IR1T IR T AR A AR #8,430,0007T i
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject AREBRIRAINEBEFRE (I ESIE
to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations. BB BIFRRE

20. AF{ETAE

20. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE mHERE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2020 2019
—EZFE —hE
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥TIT
Ferrous metal future contract, at BEEBIHESH BT
fair value — current assets BotE—neEE 13,464 1,077
21. INVENTORIES 21. 78
2020 2019
BT E —hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T AR¥TIT
Raw materials [E AL 32,946 33,135
Work in progress TR 10,409 11,004
Finished goods SUAL @ 183,281 280,996
226,636 325,135
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
R —E = —HILEE

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

22. B 5 BRWRIEREWRRE

2020 2019

—ECE “E2E—NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AR¥TIT

Trade receivables B 5 EWRIE 875,116 780,694
Less: provision for loss allowance T ESIEREE (170,374) (128,299)
704,742 652,395

Bills receivable FEU 4% 89,827 150,375
Less: provision for loss allowance B EIREE (2,998) (2,228)
791,571 800,542

BRKFEARERERSHE—KA—A
A o & B = R E H AR U] E WRIB M
BIBEES c CAERESREEREERE
HitRsy - AR E W EHE B 5 B UWGRIEE
BT A RN e E M (S ARG R -

Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing and the
credit term is generally one month. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances.

The Group's bills receivable are all due within one vear. AEEFMBRERREESEN —FREI-
As at 31 December 2020, the Group's bills receivable RIZEZEF+HA=+—HB Fc&£EBA
of RMB22,800,000 (2019: RMB52,158,000) were K 122,800,000 (ZE—NF : AR
pledged to secure the Group's bills payable (note 26). 52,158,0007T) NEWEREEHF  UA K
SEEEN RRRMIER (H5E26) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE S -FTHEL A+ HLEE

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22. B EWHEREKELE )

(Continued)
An aging analysis of the trade receivables, based on B 5 EWIE NEREH) BERNEZEREm
the invoice date and net of allowance, is as follows: ERER DT ¢
2020 2019
—E_E S — N5
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFTT ARETIT
Within 1 year 1N 214,407 361,537
1 to 2 years 15824 236,572 136,516
2 to 3 years 2FE3F 164,659 136,092
3 to 4 years 3FEASE 89,104 18,250
704,742 652,395
Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade receivables: B S EWRIER B HEHER
2020 2019
=T “E—NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥TIT
At 1 January *—H—H 128,299 109,496
Increase in loss allowance for the year &£ A5 E# BN 42,075 18,803
At 31 December K+ZA=+—H 170,374 128,299
Reconciliation of loss allowance for bills receivables: R EEEEEEHER
2020 2019
—E_E S — N5
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFTT ARETIT
At 1 January w—HB—H 2,228 4,573
Increase/(Decrease) in loss allowance FEREEEH
for the year @, Geb 770 (2,345)
At 31 December R+-B=+—H 2,998 2,228
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE —EFFEf A= —HIFFE

22.

144

— ==

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The Group applies the simplified approach under
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instrument” to provide for
expected credit losses using the lifetime expected
loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the aging. The expected credit losses also incorporate
forward looking information.

22.

BSERWHRIEREREE @

FAEBEBAEBMHREER TR TR
TRIBETHBESEAE 82 BUR
RitBAFaENRABERAESERAEE
BRER RGERAEERE E5K
WRIREREBERENESERRE A RE
D -FRHEEHERITESABIEER -

1t02 2t03 3tod
Current years years years Total
il 152 233 3T4E st
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEE+ZF=1+-H
Weighted average expected loss rate METHIRHERE 0% 12% 22% 51% 19%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) EWEE (\RETT) 214,407 267994 211,933 180,782 875,116
Loss allowance (RMB'000) BiREE \RETR) - 31422 47274 91,678 170,374
At 31 December 2019 RZE-hE+_R=1—-H
Weighted average expected loss rate METRREEE 0% 8% 23% 81% 16%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) R (\RETT) 361,537 148519 176,394 94,244 780,694
Loss allowance (RMB'000) BEEE \RETT) - 12,003 40,302 75,994 128,299
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE —E FFf A= —HIFFEE
B RWMRIEREWER @

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22.

(Continued)

At 31 December 2020, the Group endorsed certain
bills receivable accepted by certain banks in the PRC
(the “"Endorsed Notes”) to certain of its suppliers
in order to settle the trade payables due to such
suppliers (the “Endorsement”). Subsequent to
the Endorsement, the Group did not retain any
rights on the use of the Endorsed Notes, including
the sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Notes
to any other third parties. In accordance with the
“Law of Negotiable Instruments” in the PRC,
the holders of the Endorsed Notes have a right of
recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default
(the “Continuing Involvement”). The total carrying
amount of the Endorsed Notes of the Group as at
31 December 2020 was RMB206,065,000 (2019:
RMB221,691,000). In the opinion of the directors, the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards relating to certain Endorsed Notes accepted
by large and reputable banks (the “Derecognised
Notes"”) with an amount of RMB57121,000 as at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB38,729,000). Accordingly,
the Group has derecognised the full carrying amounts
of these Derecognised Notes and the associated
trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss
from the Group's Continuing Involvement in these
Derecognised Notes and the undiscounted cash
flows to repurchase these Derecognised Notes is
equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the
directors, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in these Derecognised Notes are not
significant. The Group continued to recognise the full
carrying amount of the remaining Endorsed Notes and
the associated trade payables settled with an amount
of RMB147,450,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB154,371,000), because the Directors believe that
the Group has retained substantial risks and rewards,
which include default risks relating to such remaining
Endorsed Notes.

During the Year, the Group has not recognised any
gain or loss (2019: Nil) on the date of transfer of
the Derecognised Notes. No gains or losses were
recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both
during the Year or cumulatively. The Endorsement has
been made evenly throughout the Year.

N_E_EF+_A=+—H ' xEEMH
HETHEBSZEHPEE TIRTEN
HETRERREE (HEERK)  UEERE
FZERERNEZEMHRE (BE)) o
RHEEE AEBUTEREIRAEREE
ZENEF aEFnTAEME=r1
E ERENERSEZHR - RIBE(REA
EEMBEZEHEX)  WHBENRTELN
HEEEENEEASAERERBRE
(FEEFESEMH) N _TE_ZTFE+_A
=+ —H AEENSEEHRNIREER
B4 AR 1206,065,00070 (ZE—HE :
AER#221,691,0007T) cBHRA KT
ETEFE+_HA=Z+—H AEEBEE:E
AAERMAETEANETHEERE
AE#57121,000c (ZE—NF AR
38,729,0007t) (ML IEHERVERE ) BN
BRI RS KRR EIt REBBE K
IERIZERIEEIZENE2MREER
MBS EARIE REBRNZERIERE
RERRFEEEETHNRABIERR
DEBRZEXREEIBZHEMNARMIRI
ERBEENERAE EFRE KE
ERZERIEBIAZENFEEESHN
ANEEFARK R _BE_EF+_/=+—
B AEBHUERIEGSESZENS
HEEEREFAEE BEZEBIHRIEA
K #147450,0007c (Z2—hF AR
164,371,00070) * TR EFEE > ~&EE
MRBERBD BB ROR SERZSE
T EZHERNELSRRE

AEE FEERFBERIIEIZEREH
RS EANSHER (TTE-AF !
) RAFERRFAEE BETEHME
WEREFEEESHTED - AFEYT
SGiEHE S
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_

23. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

146

EoFE+H=A— AU

23. ERBEEKRER

Disclosures of revenue-related items BN AR IE B 1R &
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2020 2019 2019
RIEZTE AZZ—NE A\ZT—hE
tZR=+-B [tZA=1-H —H—H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFTR AR®TT AR®TT
Total contract assets BEREE 72,889 200,005 261,028
Total contract liabilities BERBRE 247,049 233,103 202,284
Contract receivables (included in trade and bills & REIEWFIE Gt AE S
receivables) BYHERERER) 791,571 800,542 653,581
Transaction prices allocated to performance  DEEERHRTHN
obligation unsatisfied at end of year and BHETLEHR TS
expected to be recognised as revenue in: FERDANENRZER:
-2020 -_Z°%F - 1,209,565
-2021 -_F°—-& 932,195 761,230
-2022 -_B__F% 750,084 270,224
-2023 -_B” =% 235,206 -
1,917,485 2,241,019
Year ended 31 December
BE+_A=+—BHLEE
2020 2019
—_ 7 —_= E :ﬁ—ﬂi
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTFTT AR®BFT
Revenue recognised in the year that = N=IEI=ERN
was included in contract liabilities REEERHOW R
at beginning of year 171,136 112,888
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T FFAf = —HIFFEE

23. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 23. caRESEREE @

(Continued)

Significant changes in contract assets and

FFEEEGREERGRABEANEKR

contract liabilities during the year: EAE -

2020 2020 2019 2019
—_E_E ZEIEE | 22— NF ZTAFE
Contract Contract Contract Contract
assets liabilities assets liabilities
EREE ERAE SREE aR&E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT | ARETR | ARETTE ARET®

Increase due to operation HAFESEMELM
in the year 45,064 233,028 61,771 185,005

Transfer of contract assets to HESRBEER

receivables e R IE (168,484) = (117844) =
Impairment on contract asset SREERE (3,696) = (4,950) =

Transfer of contract liabilites to ~ BEARBEBEWNE
revenue - (219,082) - (154,186)

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for products or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer products or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

GRBEEEAEBENAST AR ERERIR
B U E B RYHER] o

GRaRErAERRNSEFEELAEREDE
ERWEAE (RERNEZRE NERN
R B
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
R —E = —HILEE

24. PREPAYMENT, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24. FAa{tIE - R H Mt EWFIE

148

RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
ZECIE “B2—hE
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%TT AREFIT
Other receivables HhpEW I 25,015 26,009
Less: impairment losses B ORERE (3,981) (2,718)
21,034 23,291
Prepayments SEANERE] 8,582 2,267
29,616 25,558

The movements in impairment losses of other
receivables are as follows:

HMEWRIRRERIBNEEIT :

2020 2019

—EB°EF —E—NEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥FT ARMETF T

At the beginning of the reporting period ¥R & HA4]] 2,718 2,315
Impairment losses on other receivables — E.1th & SRR ISR (E 518 1,263 403
At the end of the reporting period REER 3,981 2,718
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25. BANK AND CASH BALANCES AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS

At the end of reporting period, the bank and
cash balances of the Group denominated in RMB
amounted to approximately RMB104,428,000 (2019:
RMB39,150,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations.

Pledged deposit with banks have been placed as
security for bills payables issued by the Group. Bank
guarantees are performance guarantees and made for
varying periods ranging from several months to five
years depending on the agreement of the contract,
and earn interest at the respective short term time
deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

26. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

:l:
rFA

RIREHAFR ZEBRUARESHENEfT
RIS EFRESEAAR104,428,0007T

—ZE—hnF AR39,150,0007T) ° A
Rl R AINEBEFRER (IMNESIE
B4 o

RITERFEMEER UAEEEH D
N RBERMER - RITERRBENE
RIMBELR ELFHEARNN R ARIE
H RIGENHRME LIRS BEH
EHFERBARS R IRITHE R KR ERAT
ERDLEFEALHEERNCHRNEESEN
iR1T-

26. B EARERENRE

2020 2019
—E-THE —E—NEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT ARB®FT

Trade payables B S ERIE 242,290 320,618
Bills payables FET % 23,529 45,799
265,319 366,417

The bills payables were secured by the pledge of bank
deposits of RMB1,106,000 (2019: RMB27,121,000) and
the Group's bills receivables of RMB22,800,000 (2019:
RMB52,158,000).

FERNEZHEUIRITERARE,106,0007T
—ZE—hE AR¥27121,0007T) L
BAREBENEWER ARK22,800,0007T
—Z—h%F: AR®52,158,0007T) #
fRo
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26.

27.

150

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

26.

B EAREREMNR

B (1)

An aging analysis of the trade payables, based on the B EMAMBEBENEZHRNERE TN
invoice date, is as follows: 5.
2020 2019
2T T—NEF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTFT AR®BTFT
Within 1 year 1ERN 185,468 243,468
1 to 2 years 12246 30,898 48,433
2 to 3 years 2E3F 9,650 16,738
Over 3 years 3ELE 16,274 11,979
242,290 320,618
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS H it RIB R BT &
2020 2019
—EEHF T—NEF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR®BTFT
Other payables H A E T TR 95,046 99,579
Due to the related companies (Note) Wfﬁgﬁﬂﬁﬁ’& B (fsE) 312 7365
95,358 106,944
Note: The amount due to related companies are unsecured, non- B 5T Wéﬁﬁﬁﬂ‘/\ RIAREITE Tt B K EE
interest bearing and have no fixed repayment terms. FHEA o
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#HE

A=A — AU

28. BANK LOANS 28. IRITEM
2020 2019
—ECE “E2E—NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AR®ETF T
Bank loan — secured IRITTEM—FHER 106,500 125,052
Margin loan REBEEER 16,309 1,155
122,809 126,207

The secured bank loan of the Group amounting
to RMB46,500,000 (2019: RMB46,500,000) were
secured by (i) the Group's building situated in the
Mainland China, which had an aggregate net carrying
value of RMB7972,000 as at 31 December 2020
(2019: RMB9,594,000); and (ii) the Group's land
use right situated in Mainland China, which had
an aggregate carrying amount of RMB13,966,000
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB15,200,000).
The remaining amount were secured by corporate
guarantee. The margin loan was secured by the
investments at fair value through profit or loss.

The effective interest rates per annum at the end of
the reporting period were as follows:

AREBNBERBRERTERSBEAAR
#46,500,0007c (ZE— 5 : AE“&%
46,500,0007T) HU TR IEIEILIR (i
REBARFPEAIBIET ﬁA_v_
EE+_BA=+—HMWEE FEMREE
AANRMET7972,00070 (ZE—HE: A
K #9,594,0007T) ; K(i)AEE ML H
ALt ERE RZE_EHF
+ B+ —HHNEEEEEAAR
#13,966,00070 (ZE—NF : AR
15,200,0007T) © &k N8 A BERIER
HoRBSENURAFEFABRENE
B o

REREHRNERENZNT

2020
—ECEHE

2019
—hE

—-=

FRHEASRITE

Short-term bank loans:
Fixed-rate

j: .

T

[ E FJ =

4.79% -5.66% | 4.79% - 5.66%
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29. DEFERRED TAX 29. IRIEFRIA
The following are the details at deferred tax liabilities UTFABAEERZNEEREEBEREE
and assets recognised by the Group. EIEE
Changes in
investments Impairment Impairment
at fairvalue  Impairment of trade of property,
through of other and bills plant and
profit or loss  receivables receivables Accruals Tax loss equipment Total
BATE BRRNRE
st AREH Al REREE ES 1
RE4Y A HfE fEst &R WEGR  RREEE &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ARETR  ARETR ARETn ARMTn ARETRn  ARETR

At 1 January 2019 RZZ2-hE-BE-B - 579 28517 1552 1817 1422 33,887
Credit to consolidated statement FAGRERER
of profit or loss 19 101 5319 52 769 - 6,260
At 31 December 2019 and RIE-hE+-B=+-AkK
1 January 2020 Z5IZE-A-f 19 680 33836 1,604 2,586 1422 40,147
Credit/[debit) to consolidated statement st AGEEHER/ (BEE
of profit or loss Bakilk) 692 316 11,636 61) 3315 S 15,898
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEE+ZR=+-H m 996 45,472 1543 5,901 1422 56,045
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. g4
Shares Bz
2020 2019
—ECE —E-NEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR T ARBEFT
Authorised: JETE
135,000,000 ordinary shares of 135,000,0008% & f& E &
RMB1.00 each ARH1.00cHE @R 135,000 135,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE !
135,000,000 (2019: 135,000,000) 135,000,000
ordinary shares —E—HF
135,000,000) i&E @A 135,000 135,000
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31.

30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 30. &% @
Capital management BARER
The Group's primary objective when managing capital NEEESEEATESEREAEENT
is to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as BREEN BB TEERERRKFEEBH
a going concern, so that it can continue to provide EmERRT  UkEEEMAREME
returns for shareholders and benefits for other T BE SN AR /& 2 AR SR 1R (R O] 3R 23 H fh 422
stakeholders, by pricing products and services S BN D - AEEBIEELANE
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing EARERERFELESNE N RERE
access to finance at a reasonable cost. The Group's {EEBE MR T ER R HRE AL
objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes REBBRBLETR ST EERAEER
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic ER - AHTFTARABEEAER ~EED
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, FRERBIRM N TG  BRIRA
the Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue BN ER - BLOREEREIHLEEEN
new shares, buyback shares, raise new debts, redeem BNERS
existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.
RESERVES 31. f#fE
(a) The amounts of the Group's reserves and (a) FEEMNEESELRHESEFNGS
movements therein are presented in the EBEmkEMEEmNER M EEER
consolidated statement of profit or loss and BEIRP 250
other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.
(b) Reserves of the Company (b) FTAF#E
Statutory
Share Capital surplus Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
RivEE  EARE AERBEE  REE &zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2019 RZ2-nE—B—-H 239,064 3,303 38,434 304,075 584,876
Profit for the year EREF] = = - 38,163 38,153
Appropriation 1o statutory surplus BRE AT RS
reserve - - 3815 (33815) =
At 31 December 2019 RIB-NE+ZA=1-H 239,064 3,303 42,249 338,413 623,029
At 1 January 2020 RZ22ZE-F-H 239,064 3,303 42,249 338,413 623,029
Loss for the year FREE - - - 4,850 4,850
Appropriation to statutory surplus R R
reserve - - 368 (368) =
At 31 December 2020 RZBZE2F+ZA=+-B 239,064 3,303 42,617 342,89 627879
Annual Report 2020 4§}

153



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e B IR B Gk

For the year ended 31 December 2020
R —E = —HILEE

31. RESERVES (continued) 31. #E @

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves of the (c) EEREMHEREN
Group
(i) Share premium ) Rz E

(i)

154

W

Pursuant to the PRC Company Law and the
respective entities’ articles of association,
the Company and its subsidiaries
established in the PRC shall appropriate
10% of their annual statutory net profit
(determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting principles and regulations and
after offsetting any prior years’ losses) to
the statutory surplus reserve until such
reserve fund reaches 50% of the share
capital of these entities. The statutory
surplus reserve can be utilised to offset
prior years' losses or to increase capital.
However, except for offsetting prior years’
losses, such reserve must be maintained
at a minimum of 25% of the share capital
after usage.

Statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the PRC Company Law and the
respective entities’ articles of association,
the Company and its subsidiaries
established in the PRC shall appropriate
10% of their annual statutory net profit
(determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting principles and regulations and
after offsetting any prior years’ losses) to
the statutory surplus reserve until such
reserve fund reaches 50% of the share
capital of these entities. The statutory
surplus reserve can be utilised to offset
prior years' losses or to increase capital.
However, except for offsetting prior years’
losses, such reserve must be maintained
at a minimum of 25% of the share capital
after usage.

(i)

REBEFRRBEREERNE
BERMA AR RERH
BN B AB AR HESE
AN RBETE SRR
AR E WA R EH B 1
FEEBER) N10%EEERK
RE BEEZRBEZEINZ
LERRARL0% 75 E & ER
FEDTRREHEBTEENS
BYIBE - AT > FRIBIHBEE
EEBEII ARFRZHEEBERL
RBEAMERRAB25% °

SETE BRI E
RIFPEREEREERNMA
BEEZMAY AR RERF
BRI B AR AR ESF
EREMT) IRBPEEsT/RA
R & fRE T W AR IR S A B
FERBIBR) N10%ZEETERER
#E BEEZRBETEINZ
?%%HQZKE’JSO%O/fmmﬂﬁ
FETAREHEBTFEFENES
BHIEE - AT FRIGEHBEF
EmBEN ARRZERERE
RABMERKRARI25% ©
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31.

32.

S A=A — AL

RESERVES (continued)

31. f#fE @

(¢) Nature and purpose of reserves of the (c) xEBFEEERBEWN &
Group (Continued)
(i) Safety production reserve i) ZEEERFE
Pursuant to the regulation of Administrative RIFPEEERTERRI(ER
Measures for the Withdrawal and Use X T 24 EERRIMNERE
of Expenses for Safety Production of EBIOE)RE  AERK B
Enterprises in the PRC relating to the RAKBLZETRAORER
construction industry, a subsidiary of the PEA— %?AET’E%?&%E}X
Group, Tianjie Installation Engineering, 1%1% ZRBEREBESFREENK
is required to transfer an amount to the 2% BRALEEFEH 22
reserve account as safety production SERBBRBERERBEN
reserve. The amount is calculated based HERNRZEHR B E R
on the revenue of construction each year #E> BRI EREDIK
and at the applicable rate of 2%. The
safety production reserve will be used for
modification and maintenance of safety
equipment in accordance with the rules of
the Company Law of the PRC and is not
available for distribution to shareholders.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 32. ZREaIRE&ERERME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Changes in liabilities arising from (a) AMEIHIMEENEREEE
financing activities
The following table shows the Group's changes TR EAEARAFERMES
in liabilities arising from financing activities during FMmELENERED
the year:
Bank loans
RITE
RMB'000
ARHETT
At 1 January 2019 NIZZ—hF—H—H 109,000
Changes in cash flows RERELH 16,052
At 31 December 2019 A _E-hE+-B=+—H 125,052
Changes in cash flows BEREEH) (18,552)
At 31 December 2020 RZE2-_EF+_"_A=+—H 106,500
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33. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL POSITION 33. xAFEMBIRRIEE

156

OF THE COMPANY

2020 2019
T F “E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFTT ARETIT
Non-current assets EREEE
Investment in subsidiaries REABNERE 28,786 34,620
Investment in associate REBEQTNKE 75,499 =
Property, plant and equipment ME-MENEE 63,041 67364
Right-of-use assets FREEE 39,970 41,926
Intangible assets BT EE 1,046 65
Deferred tax assets REIRIBE E 45,625 34,081
Deposit paid for intangible asset MEFEESZNNES - 1,292
Pledged deposits BIRFFER 6,615 4,255
260,582 183,603
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =78 216,029 311,638
Trade and bills receivables B Z RUGRIE R BN & 758,036 746,867
Contract assets ERIEE 72,889 200,005
Prepayment, deposits and TEIRRIE 2 R EAth
other receivables FEURFRIE 89,083 76,858
Investments at fair value through BN ESABRNKRE
profit or loss 13,464 1,077
Pledged deposits (e RS 9,283 40,782
Bank and cash balances IRITRIRE 5% 73,050 5,673
1,231,834 1,382,900
Current liabilities mBAaE
Trade and bills payables B2 IB R ENEk 270,587 338,298
Contract liabilities sREAaE 240,897 229,735
Other payables and accruals HihE R IB R ETE A 87111 103,805
Bank loans IRITEM 122,809 126,207
Tax payable FE{IRIE 8,133 10,429
729,537 808,474
Net current assets MBEERE 502,297 574,426
NET ASSETS BEFE 762,879 758,029
Capital and reserves BARKiHEE
Share capital &N 135,000 135,000
Share premium 1piaE 239,064 239,064
Reserves (Efi] 388,815 383,965
TOTAL EQUITY R AEER 762,879 758,029

Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd #Hi{LRIEERBEEHE G A B A H]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o W B R B

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

- TEf AT —ALEE

34. HARE
RBEHF AEEARFAFLREMNE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and
the Company did not have any significant contingent

liabilities (2019: Nil).

RAREECE-—NF H|) o

35. AR S

2020 2019
ZEZTHF —hE&E
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFIT
Transactions with the holding BIERATNR
company
Rental paid e (i) 238 238
Electricity charges paid by ERABRKEAER
the holding company TN EE
on behalf of the Group (ii) 4,890 2,423
Transaction with other HHMBAMANRZS
related parties
Sales of materials tHE M
A IFRERERERAE I FiEE MR
BRAF (iii) - 273
IR ZBHEMERSBRAR IR ZEMEMERRD
BRAF (iii) - 86
Services received: B .
AMIKZBAEHERAS AT KRR B
BRAF (iv) 8,571 7282
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these consolidated financial statements, the Group
had the following transactions with related parties
during the year:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The rental fee was charged and the rental
income was received based on mutually agreed
prices.

The payments were made on behalf of the Group
based on the actual costs incurred.

The sales of materials to the related parties and
purchases of materials from the related parties
were made based on mutually agreed prices and
terms.

The services received from the related parties
were based on mutually agreed prices and
terms.

Key management personnel remuneration

The emoluments of the Company’s Directors, who are
also identified as members of key management of the
Group, are set out in Note 13.

35. FBARS @

FREFRaMBRREMEBOFLANZS
S AFEE AEBMERBSAUTRS !

() HEERKEEWARELSHEN
B R BN

(i) WEEENBERREANETEERZN
IR
(i) MRS HEME RRREESEE

MR 75 19 E BB R R AR
7o

(v BB SORBLERESHEN
B R ARTRAETT
FTEEEASHFHMN

FABDER (ARTEFERTEEEE
R E) NI 134K ER -
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36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 36. AT TEMWEBATINES
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 N TEF+ZRA=1+—HIFEWEL
December 2020 are as follows: BB ¢
Percentage of
Place of the Company's
incorporation/ indirect ownership
registration and  Kind of legal Issued and interest voting
Name operation legality paid-up capital power/profit sharing Principal activities
AL/ B FARRMGRRRE R
Ea S REEME RRER BETREEES R/ BHNAREDL TEEH
2020 2019
el 2 “BhE
Tianjie Installation Engineering * The PRC Limited liability RMB4,500,000 100% 100%  Provision of installation
AETREZLETRERAT company services
HE BRRE AE4,500,00070 REZERE
Tianjie Electronic and Technology * The PRC Limited liability RMB2,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale
AETRZETHEBERAT company of electronic
products
HE BRRE AE%2,000,0007 RERHEEFER
Turpan Environmental and Technology * The PRC Limited liability RMB20,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale
HEERZRENEERAT company of environmental
pollution prevention
equipment and
electronic products
HE BRRE AR 20,000,007 RERBERRSEN
BREREFEM

* The English name is for identification purpose only. e WY LTBEMAER

37 APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED 37 HIEGSHBHRR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved REMBERREN B _—F=B=+—
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on HESEgHAERIRET)E-

31 March 2021.
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BE+_A=+-BLEE

W

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

ZECEE | 22N 2 )0\E T—tF ZFRF

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR | ARETR ARETRn ARETR ARETE:

Revenue W 607,078 726,647 858,817 792,152 956,432

Gross profit e 110,954 125,314 141,240 199,102 234,033

Profit before tax wanas 503 45,114 46,408 114,483 136,314

Income tax expense/icredit) RS/ (%) (3.986) 10,825 16,172 31,319 30,817

Profit for the year REEEA 4,489 34,289 31,236 83,164 105,497
Profit and total comprehensive  FRRF RZ2EWALLE

income for the year 4,489 34,289 31,236 83,164 105,497
Earnings per share attributable to ~ FRAL AR EEGEREF]

owners of the Company UERAREST)

for the year

(expressed in RMB per share)

— Basic and diluted —HAR#E 0.03 0.25 0.23 0.62 078
Gross profit margin ER= 18.28% 17.25% 16.45% 25.13% 24.47%
Net profit margin = 0.74% 4.72% 3.64% 10.50% 11.03%

As at 31 December

®+ZBA=+—-H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZEI%F | ZZ-NFE ZE-\F ZZtFE ZZ5F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR | ARETRE ARETRT ARETR ARET:
Non-current assets FrREEE 252,564 166,274 163,873 161,352 103,730
Current assets MEEE 1,248,007 | 1432406 1340415 1,478,208 1,587611
Current liabilities mEaRE 740,567 843,165 783,062 949570 1,084,535
Net current assets MEBESE 507,440 589,241 557353 528,638 503,076
Total assets less current liabilities BELERAEAE 760,004 755,515 721,226 689,990 606,826
Net Assets EESE 760,004 755,515 721,226 689,990 606,826
Capital R 135,000 135,000 135,000 135,000 135,000
Share Premium RinaE 239,064 239,064 239,064 239,064 239,064
Reserves 1 385,940 381,451 347162 315,926 232,762
Total equity TERARE 760,004 755,515 721,226 689,990 606,826
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